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AEOI AEOI
CRS
US 1GA us
I1GA
IRS TIA
TIA

TIA
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TIA
IRS TIA
US 1GA US IGA AEOI FATCA
FATCA
FATCA
FATCA FATCA
FATCA US IGA
US IGA
US IGA AEOI FATCA
CRS
AEOI
CRS TIA CRS
AEOI

AEOI

TIA
90
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2025
11,108,010 62.27
1,486,258 8.33
1,196,635 6.71
1,008,422 5.65
565,602 3.17
511,938 2.87
405,007 2.27
343,048 1.92
226,228 1.27
216,112 1.21
138,089 0.77
130,176 0.73
118,299 0.66
17,453,824 97.85
384,391 2.15

( ngé238’215) 100.00
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(2025
TEVA
ETS&N@EEUT'CAL 4.375 | 2030705700 | 300,000 | 324,227 | 349,838 | 1.96
NETHERLANDS
AVERICAN
TN 8.500 | 2020/05/15 | 312,000 | 317,666 | 323,501 | 1.81
FNG RESOURCES
AUGUST 2006 PTY 6.125 | 2032704715 | 288,000 | 278,654 | 286,784 | 1.61
LTD
WYNN MACAU LTD 5.625 | 2028/08/26 | 297,000 | 263,888 | 286,520 | 1.61
STANDARD
INDUSTRIES 3.375 | 2031/01/15 | 322,000 | 288,040 | 285,037 | 1.60
INC/NJ
TALLGRASS ENERGY
PARTNERS LP / 6.000 | 2031/00/01 | 296,000 | 269,246 | 282,334 | 1.58
TALLGRASS EN
CD&R FIREFLY
e 8.625 | 2020704730 | 200,000 | 255,176 | 280,619 | 1.57
BARCLAYS PLC 8.375 200,000 | 265,610 | 273,211 | 1.53
FTAI INFRA ESCROW
e 10.500 | 2027706701 | 252,000 | 246,920 | 260,498 | 1.46
10 | RAND PARENT LLC 8.500 | 2030/02/15 | 234,000 | 233.457 | 230,181 | 1.29
JT INTL FIN.
11| et 4.125 | 2035706717 | 200,000 | 222,326 | 229,937 | 1.20
12 NEEPO' NT HEALTH 10.000 | 2032706701 | 218,000 | 223,031 | 228,690 | 1.28
HLF FIN. SARL LLC
13| 7 HERBALIFE INTL 12.250 | 2029704715 | 200,000 | 198,240 | 217,461 | 1.22
INC
14 EOSSE OF HR GROUP 9.000 | 2020711703 | 200,000 | 197,506 | 215,163 | 1.21
HEARTLAND DENTAL
15| LLC / HEARTLAND 10.500 | 2028704730 | 197,000 | 200,920 | 208,379 | 1.17
DENTAL
16 ﬁEgANON FIN. 1 5.125 | 2031704730 | 242,000 | 216,500 | 203,553 | 1.14
17 \L’EEDE PURCHASER 10.500 | 2030711730 | 191,000 | 198,101 | 203,428 | 1.14
18| FORVIA SE 8.000 | 2030/06/15 | 200,000 | 200,000 | 203,305 | 1.14
OLYMPUS WATER US
L] Ials 7.250 | 2031706715 | 200,000 | 200,000 | 200,495 | 1.12
STONEPEAK NILE
20 | proNrEAR 7.250 | 2032703715 | 192,000 | 193,098 | 199,018 | 1.12
FIRST QUANTUM
21 [ f 1 BT 8.000 | 2033/03/01 | 200,000 | 200,000 | 198,624 | 1.11
22 ggRLDLgOTOR CREDIT 6.500 | 2035/02/07 | 200,000 | 196,870 | 194,948 | 1.09
ALLIED UNIVERSAL
23| HoLDCO 4.625 | 2028706701 | 200,000 | 189,500 | 191,162 | 1.07
LLC/ALLIED UNIV
24| CSC HOLDINGS LLC 11.750 | 2029/01/31 | 200,000 | 194,500 | 187,737 | 1.05
25 | WILSONART LLC 11.000 | 2032/08/15 | 197,000 | 197,000 | 173,610 | 0.97
26 | PICARD MIDCO INC 6.500 | 2029/03/31 | 172,000 | 160.672 | 172,108 | 0.96
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27| IPD 3BV 0.000 | 2031/06/15 150,000 162,713 170,901 | 0.96
QUIKRETE
28 HOLDINGS INC 6.750 | 2033/03/01 167,000 168,065 169,617 | 0.95
29 | STONEX GROUP INC 7.875 | 2031/03/01 159,000 160,884 167,697 | 0.94
MINERAL
30 RESOURCES LTD 9.250 | 2028/10/01 164,000 167,729 167,368 | 0.94
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2025
(2016 31 ) 9,869,910 1,419,983,952 122.58 17,636
(2017 31 ) 9,407,131 1,353,403,937 138.44 19,917
(2018 31 ) 10,205,790 1,468,307,007 145.28 20,901
(2019 31 ) 6,992,435 1,006,001,623 143.79 20,687
(2020 31 ) 6,099,557 877,543,266 159.67 22,972
10
(2021 31 ) 5,092,481 732,655,241 160.93 23,153
11
2022 31 4,916,824 707,383,469 161.31 23,208
12
2023 31 3,702,213 532,637,384 146.28 21,045
13
2024 31 3,677,809 529,126,381 156.06 22,452
14
2025 31 3,336,511 480,023,838 168.47 24,238
2024 3,540,589 509,384,539 160.16 23,042
3,459,872 497,771,785 162.62 23,396
3,462,038 498,083,407 164.58 23,678
3,502,923 503,965,532 166.52 23,957
10 3,485,720 501,490,536 165.70 23,839
11 3,319,859 477,628,114 167.37 24,080
12 3,312,602 476,584,050 167.26 24,064
2025 3,336,511 480,023,838 168.47 24,238
3,355,231 482,717,084 169.41 24,373
3,295,066 474,061,145 166.38 23,937
3,286,841 472,877,815 165.96 23,877
3,353,175 482,421,287 169.31 24,359
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(2016 31 ) 31,066,828 4,469,584,544 20.50 2,949

(2017 31 ) 41,614,154 5,987,028,336 27.36 3,936

(2018 31 ) 23,776,104 3,420,668,082 26.69 3,840

(2019 31 ) 14,324,094 2,060,807,404 20.00 2,877

(2020 31 ) 10,515,051 1,512,800,387 15.86 2,282
10

(2021 31 ) 6,483,639 932,801,143 10.74 1,545
11

2022 31 5,295,153 761,813,662 10.32 1,485
12

2023 31 4,537,161 652,761,353 10.11 1,455
13

2024 31 3,198,900 460,225,743 11.31 1,627
14

2025 31 2,518,486 362,334,581 10.36 1,490

2024 2,729,806 392,737,189 10.35 1,489

2,710,385 389,943,090 10.34 1,488

2,733,082 393,208,507 10.43 1,501

2,871,620 413,139,969 10.97 1,578

10 2,643,519 380,323,079 10.28 1,479

11 2,537,839 365,118,897 10.08 1,450

12 2,359,072 339,399,689 9.63 1,385

2025 2,518,486 362,334,581 10.36 1,490

2,529,061 363,856,006 10.40 1,496

2,545,567 366,230,724 10.50 1,511

2,569,307 369,646,198 10.60 1,525

2,602,065 374,359,092 10.73 1,544
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2016 1y 9,937,453 | 1,429,701,363 39.38 5,666

2017 1y 10,774,351 | 1,550,105,878 46.83 6,737

2018 1y 10,929,376 | 1,572,409,325 46.83 6,737

2019 1y 8,577,723 | 1.,234,077,008 35.01 5,037

(2020 1y 6,174,194 883,281,291 27.88 4,011
10

(2021 1y 2,320,966 333,917,378 23.26 3,346
11

- o 1,539,834 221,535,918 21.05 3,028
12

2005 o 1,132,522 162,935, 940 17.01 2,577
13

20s o 1,075,521 154,735,206 17.66 2,541

14 976,482 140, 486,465 16.81 2.418

2025 31 ’ 486, ' ’

2024 1,033,992 148,760,429 17.22 2,477

1,033,387 148,673,388 17.21 2,476

1,057,236 152,104,543 17.68 2,544

1,097,337 157,873,874 18.35 2,640

10 1,029,572 148,124,524 17.37 2,499

11 1,009,508 145,237,916 17.14 2,466

12 948,978 136,529, 465 16.34 2,351

2025 976,482 140,486, 465 16.81 2,418

976,633 140,508,190 16.84 2,423

967,700 139,222,999 16.69 2,401

967,629 139,212,784 16.69 2,401

991,935 142,709,688 17.11 2,462
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(2016 31 157,952,934 | 14,623,282,630 81.04 7,503
(2017 31 141,516,180 | 13,101,567,944 79.87 7,394
(2018 31 116,274,709 | 10,764,712,559 72.14 6,679
(2019 31 80,235,438 7,428,196,850 59.08 5,470
(2020 31 68,632,274 6,353,975,927 52.45 4,856
(20;2 31 48,456,914 4,486,141,098 44.00 4,074
20;; 31 30,651,460 2,837,712,167 38.05 3,523
25;% 31 22,447,086 2,078,151,222 31.08 2,877

(20;2 31 19,801,630 1,833,234,905 30.19 2,795
20;3 31 17,709,640 1,639,558,471 29.81 2,760
2024 18,589,883 1,721,051,368 29.80 2,759
18,695,687 1,730,846,702 30.06 2,783

18,660,851 1,727,621,586 30.14 2,790

18,700,796 1,731,319,694 30.26 2,801

10 18,255,018 1,690,049,566 29.91 2,769

11 18,133,061 1,678,758,787 30.00 2,777

12 17,759,740 1,644,196,729 29.80 2,759

2025 17,709,640 1,639,558,471 29.81 2,760
17,514,681 1,621,509,167 29.78 2,757

17,035,504 1,577,146,960 29.04 2,689

16,781,369 1,553,619,142 28.75 2,662

16,923,380 1,566,766,520 29.12 2,696
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2025 2025

10.20 1,467

4.20 604

3.60 518

3.60 518

3.60 518

10 1.80 259
11 1.20 173
12 0.50 72
13 0.36 52
14 0.36 52
2025 0.03 4
0.03 4

0.03 4

0.03 4
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11.40 1,640

7.60 1,093

7.20 1,036

7.20 1,036

7.20 1,036

10 3.60 518
11 2.40 345
12 1.40 201
13 1.20 173
14 1.20 173
2025 0.10 14
0.10 14

0.10 14

0.10 14
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12.00 1,111

12.00 1,111

12.00 1,111

12.00 1,111

12.00 1,111

10 7.50 694
11 6.00 555
12 3.00 278
13 2.40 222
14 2.40 222
2025 0.20 19
0.20 19

0.20 19

0.20 19
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3.62
12.94
4.94
1.03
11.04
10 0.79
11 0.24
12 9.32
13 6.69
14 7.95
23.95
53.95
10.71
11.58
2.70
10 20.93
11 7.26
12 2.81
13 15.43
14 5.22
18.65
38.22
15.37
9.87
0.20
10 3.66
11 0.82
12 8.27
13 5.30
14 1.98
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1.34
13.36
5.35
1.47
9.09
10 1.81
11 0.11
12 10.43
13 4.86
14 6.69

100 x
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1,705 88,478 80,515
(1,705) (88,478) (80,515)

15,575 28,139 67,951

(15,575) (28,139) (67,951)

18,026 15,726 70,251

(18,026) (15,726) (70,251)

990 22,613 48,628

(990) (22,613) (48,628)

780 11,207 38,201

(780) (11,207) (38,201)

10 169 6,726 31,644
(169) (6,726) (31,644)

1 1,815 2,978 30,481
(1,815) (2,978) (30,481)

1 40 5,212 25,309
(40) (5,212) (25,309)

13 0 1,743 23,566
0) (1,743) (23,566)

14 0 3,761 19,805
0) (3,761) (19,805)
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240,258 325,943 1,515,528
(240, 258) (325,943) (1,515,528)
391,819 386,546 1,520,801
(391,819) (386,546) (1,520,801)
133,309 763,230 890,880
(133,309) (763,230) (890, 880)
5,040 179,750 716,170
(5,040) (179,750) (716,170)
3,801 57,052 662,919
(3.801) (57,052) (662,919)
10 0 59,282 603,637
0) (59,282) (603, 637)
1 0 90,789 512,848
0) (90,789) (512,848)
" 2,150 66,230 448,768
(2,150) (66,230) (448,768)
1 0 166,009 282,759
0) (166,009) (282,759)
1 0 39,647 243,112
0) (39,647) (243,112)
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15,285 128,916 252,366
(15, 285) (128,916) (252, 366)

59,015 81,283 230,098
(59,015) (81,283) (230,098)

43,095 39,803 233,390
(43,095) (39,803) (233,390)

57,790 46,180 245,000
(57,790) (46,180) (245,000)

0 23,558 221,442
(0) (23,558) (221,442)

10 4,880 126,547 99,775
(4,880) (126,547) (99,775)

1 0 26,641 73,134
0) (26,641) (73,134)

1 0 9,886 63,248
(0) (9, 886) (63,248)

13 0 2,341 60,907
(0) (2,341) (60,907)

1 0 2,820 58,087
(0) (2,820) (58,087)
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138,772 1,354,284 1,948,882

(138,772) (1,354,284) (1,948,882)

293,093 470,317 1,771,658

(293,093) (470,317) (1,771,658)

411,754 571,734 1,611,678

(411,754) (571,734) (1,611,678)

51,948 305,515 1,358,111

(51,948) (305,515) (1,358,111)

89,228 138,708 1,308,631

(89,228) (138,708) (1,308,631)

10 9,770 217,219 1,101,182

(9,770) (217,219) (1,101,182)
1 4,450 300,000 805,632
(4,450) (300,000) (805, 632)
1 2,140 85,631 722,141
(2,140) (85,631) (722,141)
13 0 66,236 655,905
(0) (66,236) (655,905)
1 0 61,796 594,109
(0) (61,796) (594,109)
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FRA

FRA

Lux-Fund-Business@mizuho. lu

DPA
DPA

DPA
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DPA
DPA

1,000
1,000
10,000
30,000

10,000
30,000

3.3
2.2
1.1
0.275

3.0

2.0

1.0
0.25
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2025 31

2025 31 2024 31
718,492 103,369 721,922 103,863
16,861,648 2,425,885 20,748,759 2,985,124
303,090 43,606 70,915 10,203
332,712 47,867 361,280 51,977
205,947 29,630 156,003 22,444
18,421,889 2,650,357 22,058,879 3,173,611
147,955 21,286 371,581 53,459
243,272 35,000 460,951 66,317
18,387 2,645 44,280 6,371
39,202 5,640 45,724 6,578
23,452 3,374 26,955 3,878
11,500 1,655 11,374 1,636
9,197 1,323 10,571 1,521
30,000 4,316 30,000 4,316
690 99 793 114
3,833 551 3,832 551
409 59
16,533 2,379 10,311 1,483
544,021 78,268 1,016,781 146,284
17,877,868 2,572,089 21,042,098 3,027,327
18,421,889 2,650,357 22,058,879 3,173,611

2025 13
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2025 31
2025 31 2024 31
1,457,039 209,624 1,492,299 214,697
(222,936) (32,074) 1,980,058 284,871
449,854 64,720 (1,298,394) (186,800)
(1,365,247) (196,418) 593,785 85,428
471,458 67,829 (1,588,196) (228,494)
790,168 113,681 1,179,552 169,702
160,749 23,127 181,060 26,049
99,768 14,354 113,641 16,350
45,126 6,492 44,751 6,438
22,665 3,261 27,943 4,020
39,127 5,629 43,425 6,248
19,957 2,871 14,999 2,158
62,719 9,023 100,230 14,420
25,340 3,646 58,751 8,453
32,123 4,622 51,414 7,397
507,574 73,025 636,214 91,532
282,594 40,657 543,338 78,170
(1,154,307) (166,070) (1,323,469) (190,407)
(4,455) (641) (6,654) (957)
(876,168) (126,054) (786,785) (113,195)
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2023

2024

2025

31

31

31

2025 31
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2025 31
2025 31 2024 31
(876,168) (126,054) (786,785) (113,195)
1,154,307 166,070 1,323,469 190,407
(471,458) (67,829) 1,588,196 228,494
222,936 32,074 (1,980,058) (284,871)
(449,854) (64,720) 1,298,394 186,800
(136,648) (19,660) (79,492) (11,437)
28,568 4,110 7,627 1,097
4,362 628
(409) (59) (116) @an
(6,522) (938) (5,716) (822)
(3,503) (504) (4,114) (592)
(1,374) (198) (2,755) (396)
126 18 (126) (18)
7,479 1,076
1 0 (1,496) (215)
(103) (15) (552) (79)
6,217 894 7,544 1,085
(533,884) (76,810) 1,375,861 197,945
(25,880,316) (3,723,401)  (20,079,615) (2,888,854)
29,879,032 4,298,696 23,000,054 3,309,018
3,998,716 575,295 2,920,439 420,164
(2,313,955) (332,909)  (3,358,606) (483,203)
(1,154,307) (166,070)  (1,323,469) (190,407)
(3,468,262) (498,979)  (4,682,075) (673,610)
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2025 31 2024 31
(3,430) (493) (385,775) (55,501)
721,922 103,863 1,107,697 159, 364
718,492 103,369 721,922 103,863
1,485,607 213,734 1,499,926 215,794
4,455 641 6,654 957
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0.56 2024 0.00 3.52 2024
11.20 95.92 2024 88.36 0.0 2024 0.44
75.65 2024 57.48
1933 144
2025 31 144
11,283,548 11,561,978 2024 12,371,721 12,612,461 2025 31
21.55 2024 21.55
2025 31 2026 10 31 2082 18 2024 2026 15 2083 25
1.625 13 2024 1.625 11.50
2011
0.51 2025 31
99,768 2024 113,641 23,452
2024 26,955
2011 29
0.01
3,750 30
2025 31 19,957 2024 14,999
3,833 2024 3,832
2022 20
0.08 11,250
2025 31
45,126 2024 44,751 11,500 2024
11,374
2011
0.755
2025 31 160,749 2024
181,060 39,202 2024 45,724
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2011
0.015
2025 31
22,665 2024 27,943
0.20
39,127
9,197 2024 10,571
2011 29
0.01 3,750
2025 31 2024 31
1,320,391 1,412,807
148,259 106,569
(11,611) (27,077)
1,457,039 1,492,299
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2025 31 2024 31
95,463 138,483
71,941 74,839
986,903 1,110,147
1,154,307 1,323,469

HYUSDUSD

HYUSDBRL

HYUSDBS1

HYAUDAUD

HYJPYJPY

HYJPYBS1

HYJPYBRL

10,000
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2025 31

HYAUDAUD 655,905 (61,796) 594,109 29.81
HYUSDBRL 282,759 (39,647) 243,112 10.36
HYUSDBS1 60,907 (2,820) 58,087 16.81
HYUSDUSD 23,566 (3,761) 19,805 168.47
2024 31

HYAUDAUD 722,141 (66,236) 655,905 30.19
HYUSDBRL 448,768 (166,009) 282,759 11.31
HYUSDBS1 63,248 (2,341) 60,907 17.66
HYUSDUSD 25,309 (1,743) 23,566 156.06

2025 31 2024
2025 31
2025 31
10 1,686,165 2024
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1,686,165 2024 2,074,876
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2025 31
100
2025 31
2025 31 2024 31
10 * 10 *
7,781 778 8,861 886
131,781 13,178 17,968 1,797
139,562 26,829
* 2025 31 10
2025 31 10
10
*
1,006,926
29,215
253,191
2024 31 10
10
*
1,220,152
32,326
321,543
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10 10
8,386,340 8,125,367 349,941 16,861,648
7,909,760 10,682,249 2,064,940 91,810 20,748,759
100
840,116 2024 1,301,464
776,799 2024 1,199,408
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2025 31 2024 31
108,003 0.64 0.00
207,698 1.23 430,204 2.07
1,024,825 6.08 1,278,696 6.16
2,223,820 13.19 4,063,768 19.57
2,450,979 14.54 3,877,973 18.69
3,423,689 20.31 2,683,004 12.93
2,820,043 16.72 2,736,566 13.19
2,522,055 14.96 1,831,393 8.83
837,518 4.97 829,082 4.00
503,404 2.99 603,214 2.91
6,939 0.04 0.00
44,592 0.26 0.00
16,173,565 95.93 18,333,900 88.35
94,086 0.56 0.00
60,160 0.36 532,840 2.57
0.00 733,973 3.54
0.00 207,183 1.00
195,695 1.16 652,623 3.15
157,292 0.93 0.00
86,802 0.51 0.00
0.00 196,430 0.95
594,035 3.52 2,323,049 11.21
30,889 0.18 0.00
63,158 0.37 0.00
94,047 0.55 0.00

2025 31
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31
94,047 94,047
594,035 594,035
16,173,566 16,173,566
303,090 303,090
17,164,738 17,164,738
(243,272) (243,272)
(243,272) (243,272)

31
2,323,049 2,323,049
18,333,900 18,333,900
91,810 91,810
70,915 70,915
91,810 20,727,864 20,819,674
(460,951) (460,951)
(460,951) (460,951)
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299,989 183,377 116,612
303,090 186,478 116,612
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0] (DR
59,895 3,101 56,794
183,377 183,377
243,272 186,478 56,794
0] (DR
6,050 4,638 1,412
450,359 66,277 384,082
4,525 4,525
17 17
460,951 70,915 390,036
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30,000
42,000

31,000

63,000
100,000
200,000
150,000
100,000

44,000
100,000
78,000
200,000

113,000
100,000

36,000
110,000
125,000
122,000

146,117
100,000
102,875
100,000

60,000
100,000

100,000

AMC NETWORKS INC BDS 4.25% 24-15/2/29 29,979 30,889 0.17
HERBALIFE LTD BDS 4.25% 22-15/6/28 31,710 31,358 0.18
IsgyggE THERAPEUTICS INC BDS 2.25% 22- 29,819 31,800 0.18

91,508 94,047 0.53
2;?2292}22 POWER & UTILITIES CORP BDS FTV 58,244 60,160 0.34
AROUNDTOWN SA BDS 1.625% 21-PERP 86,516 94,086 0.53
ELECTRICITE DE FRANCE SA BDS 3.375% 20-PERP 174,701 195,695 1.09
IPD 3 BV BDS FRN 24-15/6/31 162,713 157,292 0.87
RENO DE MEDICI SPA BDS FRN 24-15/4/29 90,568 86,802 0.49

572,742 594,035 3.32
ﬁg}§9£3 GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTD BDS 7.5% 25- 44,000 44,592 0.25
?92557 PELZER HOLDING GMBH BDS 9.5% 23- 100,506 101,978 0.57
ALGOMA STEEL INC BDS 9.125% 24-15/4/29 78,000 78,382 0.44
ﬁ%gégg gT!¥E§§2§ HOLDCO LLC/ALLIED UNIV BDS 189,500 190,726 1.07
ALPHA GENERATION LLC BDS 6.75% 24-15/10/32 113,609 114,392 0.64
ALTICE FRANCE SA BDS 3.375% 19-15/1/28 85,064 84,313 0.47
AMC NETWORKS INC BDS 10.25% 24-15/1/29 37,620 38,531 0.22
AMC NETWORKS INC BDS 4.25% 21-15/2/29 84,655 87,184 0.49
AMER SPORTS CO BDS 6.75% 24-16/2/31 125,895 128,602 0.72
AMERICAN AIRLINES INC BDS 8.5% 23-15/5/29 126,145 128,827 0.72
gggRé?gg% giﬁégﬁiizglNC/ AADVANTAGE LOYALT 140,660 145,855 0.82
AMS-OSRAM AG BDS 10.5% 23-30/3/29 116,272 102,570 0.57
ARD FINANCE SA BDS 5% 19-30/6/27 115,407 6,939 0.04
gggAg; gffﬁ&g;ggKAGlNG FIN. USA LLC / ARDAG 91,863 89,856 0.50
QEEEEgO ESCROW [ISSUER 2 INC BDS 10% 23- 61,971 66,069 0.37
ﬁ;?EgSLIN CAVERION GROUP AB BDS 6.25% 24- 107,715 108,492 0.61
ASTON MARTIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD BDS 127,975 124,038 0.69

10.375% 24-31/3/29
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81,000
170,000
100,000
226,000

84,000
103,000
200,000

38,000

58,000

77,000
100,000

57,000

99,000

200,000
100,000
100,000

57,000
100,000

49,000
288,000
120,000

89,000
252,000
137,000
106,000
127,000
122,000

64,000

55,000
103,000

197,000
100,000

113,000

BATH & BODY WORKS INC BDS 6.95% 03-1/3/33
BEAZER HOMES USA INC BDS 7.5% 24-15/3/31

BOMBARDIER INC BDS 7.45% 04-1/5/34

BROADSTREET PARTNERS INC BDS 5.875% 21-
15/4/29

CARVANA CO BDS 13% 23-1/6/30

CCO HOLDINGS LLC / CCO HOLDINGS CAPITAL BDS
4.25% 20-1/2/31
CD&R FIREFLY BIDCO PLC BDS 8.625% 24-

30/74/29
CELANESE US HOLDINGS LLC BDS 6.379% 22-
15/7/32
CELANESE US HOLDINGS LLC BDS 6.7% 23-
15/11/33

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS OPERATING LLC / C
BDS 6.55% 24-1/6/34

CHEPLAPHARM ARZNEIMITTEL GMBH BDS 7.5% 23-
15/5/30

CIVITAS RESOURCES INC BDS 8.625% 23-1/11/30

CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS INC BDS
7.875% 24-1/4/30

CT INVEST. GMBH BDS 6.375% 24-15/4/30

EDGE FINCO PLC BDS 8.125% 24-15/8/31

ENGINEERING - INGEGNERIA INFORMATICA - BDS
8.625% 25-15/2/30

ENOVA INTL INC BDS 9.125% 24-1/8/29
ERAMET SA BDS 6.5% 24-30/11/29

FIRSTCASH INC BDS 5.625% 21-1/1/30

FMG RESOURCES AUGUST 2006 PTY LTD BDS
6.125% 22-15/4/32

FOUNDATION BUILDING MATERIALS INC BDS 6%
21-1/3/29

FRONTIER COMM. HOLDINGS LLC BDS 8.625% 23-
15/3/31

FTAl INFRA ESCROW HOLDINGS LLC BDS 10.5%
22-1/6/27

FULL HOUSE RESORTS INC BDS 8.25% 21-15/2/28

GARDA WORLD SECURITY CORP BDS 6% 21-1/6/29

GARDA WORLD SECURITY CORP BDS 8.375% 24-
15/11/32

GGAM FIN. LTD BDS 5.875% 24-15/3/30
GGAM FIN. LTD BDS 8% 23-15/6/28
GLATFELTER CORP BDS 7.25% 24-15/11/31

GOEASY LTD BDS 7.625% 24-1/7/29

HEARTLAND DENTAL LLC / HEARTLAND DENTAL BDS
10.5% 23-30/4/28
HELIOS SOFTWARE HOLDINGS INC / ION CORP BDS
7.875% 24-1/5/29
HILTON GRAND VACATIONS BORROWER ESCROW BDS
4.875% 21-1/7/31
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79,637
170,764
105,250
200,238

92,755

86,649
255,176

38,859

60,239

80,521
105,152

60,472

99,733
217,041
131,085
104,200

59,000
107,898

47,677
278,654
107,581

96,009
246,920
140,719

91,024
127,719
122,369

64,339

55,000
104,919

200,920
107,130

101,196

82,179
171,770
105,380
221,611

93,382

91,475
257,053

39,182

60,905

79,096

96,498

60,533
102,482
216,048
126,666
108,003

60,128
101,563

48,041
286,836
107,544

95,147
267,462
137,915
102,040
131,289
121,096

67,732

54,245
106,524
210,337

106,414

102,736

.46
.96
.59
.24
.52
.51
.44
.22
.34
.44
.54
.34
.57
.21
.71
.60
.34
.57
.27
.60
.60
.53
.50

77
.57
.73
.68
.38
.30
.60

.18

.60

.57
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200,000
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175,000

65,000
100,000
132,000
153,000
100,000
119,000
104,000

40,180

57,256
186,000

84,000
147,000
276,000

48,000
100,000
175,000
200,000

100,000

138,000
59,000
97,000

118,000
164,000
209,000
80,000
72,000
188,000

55,000
83,000
44,000
90,000
92,000

HLF FIN. SARL LLC / HERBALIFE INTL INC BDS
12.25% 24-15/4/29

HOUSE OF HR GROUP B.V BDS 9% 22-3/11/29

HOWARD MIDSTREAM ENERGY PARTNERS LLC BDS
7.375% 24-15/7/32
HUSKY INJECTION MOLDING SYSTEMS LTD / TITA
BDS 9% 24-15/2/29

ICELAND BONDCO PLC BDS 10.875% 23-15/12/27

JB POINDEXTER & CO INC BDS 8.75% 23-
15/12/31

KOHL*S CORP BDS 3.375% 21-1/5/31

LABORATOIRE EIMER SELAS BDS 5% 21-1/2/29

LATAM AIRLINES GROUP SA BDS 7.875% 24-
15/4/30

LBM ACQUISITION LLC BDS 6.25% 20-15/1/29
LEVEL 3 FIN. INC BDS 10% 24-15/10/32
LEVEL 3 FIN. INC BDS 4.875% 24-15/6/29
LGI HOMES INC BDS 4% 21-15/7/29

LGI HOMES INC BDS 7% 24-15/11/32

LIFE TIME INC BDS 6% 24-15/11/31
LIFEPOINT HEALTH INC BDS 10% 24-1/6/32
LIFEPOINT HEALTH INC BDS 11% 23-15/10/30

LUNE HOLDINGS SARL BDS 5.625% 21-15/11/28

MACY"S RETAIL HOLDINGS LLC BDS 6.125% 22-
15/3/32

MARKET BIDCO FINCO PLC BDS 5.5% 22-4/11/27

MAUSER PACKAGING SOLUTIONS HOLDING CO BDS
9.25% 23-15/4/27

MCGRAW-HILL EDUCATION INC BDS 7.375% 24-
1/9/31

METIS MERGER SUB LLC BDS 6.5% 21-15/5/29

MIDCONTINENT COMM. BDS 8% 24-15/8/32

MIDWEST GAMING BORROWER LLC / MIDWEST G BDS
4.875% 21-1/5/29

MINERAL RESOURCES LTD BDS 9.25% 23-1/10/28

MOZART DEBT MERGER SUB INC BDS 5.25% 21-
1/10/29

MURPHY OIL CORP BDS 6% 24-1/10/32

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE HOLDINGS INC BDS 7.125%
24-1/2/32

NEXTERA ENERGY OPERATING PARTNERS LP BDS
7.25% 23-15/1/29

NOVELIS CORP BDS 3.25% 21-15/11/26
NOVELIS CORP BDS 3.875% 21-15/8/31
NOVELIS INC BDS 6.875% 25-30/1/30
NRG ENERGY INC BDS 6% 24-1/2/33

NRG ENERGY INC BDS 6.25% 24-1/11/34
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67,231
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147,000
281,031

52,680

86,341
164,834
236,639

100,074

142,498
55,445
97,000

105,542
167,729
198,756
78,895
72,028
191,861

51,805
71,659
44,000
89,621
92,000

210,085
211,318

182,072

68,367
130,568
140,685
122,674

96,254
120,125

96,159

40,094

49,594
169,647

83,899
146,964
268,895

53,182

73,371
165,699
240,123

101,988

143,820
57,301
99,760

112,631
173,778
203,363
77,397
74,250
189,331

53,297
72,761
45,063
88,007
90,851
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43,000
137,000

96,000
242,000
120,000
143,000
121,000
172,000
100,000
100,000
111,000
168,000

86,000
112,000
158,000

43,000
374,000

19,000
155,000
100,000

10,000
296,000

89,000

180,000
147,000
100,000

200,000
135,000
163,000
164,000
57,000
59,000

96,000

OEG FIN. PLC BDS 7.25% 24-27/9/29

OLYMPUS WATER US HOLDING CORP BDS 7.25% 24-
15/6/31

ONEMAIN FIN. CORP BDS 3.5% 21-15/1/27
ONEMAIN FIN. CORP BDS 4% 20-15/9/30
ONEMAIN FIN. CORP BDS 7.125% 24-15/11/31

ORGANON FIN. 1 LLC BDS 5.125% 21-30/4/31

PATRICK INDUSTRIES INC BDS 6.375% 24-
1/11/32

PENN NTL GAMING INC BDS 4.125% 21-1/7/29

PENNYMAC FIN. SERVICES INC BDS 5.75% 21-
15/9/31

PICARD MIDCO INC BDS 6.5% 22-31/3/29
PINNACLE BIDCO PLC BDS 10% 23-11/10/28
PINNACLE BIDCO PLC BDS 8.25% 23-11/10/28
POST HOLDINGS INC BDS 6.375% 24-1/3/33
RAND PARENT LLC BDS 8.5% 23-15/2/30
RINGCENTRAL INC BDS 8.5% 23-15/8/30
RITHM CAPITAL CORP BDS 8% 24-1/4/29
ROCKET SOFTWARE INC BDS 6.5% 21-15/2/29

ROCKET SOFTWARE INC BDS 9% 24-28/11/28

STANDARD INDUSTRIES INC/NJ BDS 3.375% 20-
15/1/31

STATION CASINOS LLC BDS 4.625% 21-1/12/31

STONEX GROUP INC BDS 7.875% 24-1/3/31

SUMMER BC HOLDCO B SARL BDS 5.75% 19-
31/10/26

SURGERY CENTER HOLDINGS INC BDS 7.25% 24-
15/4/32

TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTNERS LP / TALLGRASS EN
BDS 6% 21-1/9/31

TASEKO MINES LTD BDS 8.25% 24-1/5/30

TECHEM VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 675 MBH BDS
5.375% 24-15/7/29

TERRAFORM POWER OPERATING LLC BDS 4.75% 19-
15/1/30

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLAN BDS
1.625% 16-15/10/28

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS BDS
4.375% 21-9/5/30

THOR INDUSTRIES INC BDS 4% 21-15/10/29
TRANSDIGM INC BDS 4.875% 21-1/5/29
TRONOX INC BDS 4.625% 21-15/3/29

UNISYS CORP BDS 6.875% 20-1/11/27

UNITI GROUP LP / UNITI FIBER HOLDINGS INC
BDS 6% 21-15/1/30

UNIVISION COMM. INC BDS 4.5% 21-1/5/29
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96,000
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147,048
84,406

217,550
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151,086
147,998
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50,445
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217,532
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123,030
98,812
218,912
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132,464
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109,608
174,429
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113,472
150,022
44,607
328,105
17,276
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104,160
9,988
284,558
91,242
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135,862
97,091
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O O O O O O O o o o o

[EEN

o O o

.22
.14
.23
.69
.55
.22
.66
.73
.65
.95
.74
.62
.61
.98
.51
.63
.84
.25
.84
.10
.91
.58
.06
.59
.51
.08
.76
.54

.19
.69
.87
.83
.32
.29

.49
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74,000
121,000
81,000

58,000

57,000
191,000

122,000
100,000
153,000
197,000
297,000
107,000

31,000

UNIVISION COMM. INC BDS 7.375% 22-30/6/30
UNIVISION COMM. INC BDS 8% 23-15/8/28

UNIVISION COMM. INC BDS 8.5% 24-31/7/31

USA COMPRESSION PARTNERS LP / USA COMPR BDS
6.875% 19-1/9/27

VENTURE GLOBAL LNG INC BDS 8.125% 23-1/6/28

VERDE PURCHASER LLC BDS 10.5% 23-30/11/30

VICTRA HOLDINGS LLC / VICTRA FIN. CORP BDS
8.75% 24-15/9/29

VIRGIN MEDIA 02 VENDOR FIN. NOTES V DA BDS
7.875% 24-15/3/32

WATCO COS LLC / WATCO FIN. CORP BDS 7.125%
24-1/8/32

WILSONART LLC BDS 11% 24-15/8/32

WYNN MACAU LTD BDS 5.625% 20-26/8/28

WYNN RESORTS FIN. LLC / WYNN RESORTS CA BDS
6.25% 24-15/3/33

ZAYO GROUP HOLDINGS INC BDS 6.125% 20-
1/3/28
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72,423 73,303 0.41
121,313 124,003 0.69
81,000 81,390 0.46
58,543 58,420 0.33
57,498 59,592 0.33
198,100 207,827 1.16
124,100 129,346 0.72
127,424 123,322 0.69
153,000 158,772 0.89
197,000 197,165 1.10
263,887 287,578 1.61
106,761 106,108 0.59
27,512 27,623 0.15
15,984,512 16,173,566 90.47
16,648,762 16,861,648 94.32
1,016,221 5.68

17,877,868 100.00




GLOBAL HIGH ¥TELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION

A SERTES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

MEN N,

i )

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Assels

Cash and cash egavalents (Modes 2 and B)

Financial asaets at fair value through profit or loss (Motes 3 and &)
Unrealised gain on forward eurency contracts. (Note £)

Interest mocnoml

Receivable from imvestments sold

Total asseis

Libilities

Piyable for imvestments purchised
Unrealised loss on forward currency contracts (Mote §)
Redemptions paable

Linvestinent fmugenent fe pavalle (Mot 4)
Distribuator fee payable (Note )
Adrmmsermon fee Fm:,'.lH:[an: 43

Agent Foz piyable (MNote 4)

Auclit fee pavable

Custody fee pavable (MNote 4)

Trustes foe pavable (Note 4)

Mt bank: overdraft

Other fee pavable

Liabilimes (excuding net assefs atmbutable to Unitholders)
Met pssets attnbutable to Unitholders
Tatal liabilitics

=

J

EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E25766)
0O00000000000000000

Jamary 31, 2025 Jumery 31, 2024
5 TI8AD2 5 721,922
16,861 648 M0, T48. 759
303 0590 TO915
L) ) Ial,280
205,947 156,003
£ 18,421,580 £ 1 05REM
£ 147,955 £ arss
243,272 HE0,951
18,387 44,230
0.2 45,724
23452 26955
11,500 11,374
9197 10,571
30,000 J0.000
690 93
353 3832
- A0
16,531 10,311
54021 1,006,781
17,877 8658 21,04 2068
g 1842180 S 33 0SEETD

Approved for issuance on behalf of CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (formerly
FirstCanbbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited), not i its indhividual capacity but solely as
Trustee to Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series trust of DIAM Cavman Trust by

Bopmie Cuthbert
Sastry Dookhy

Drate: June 13, 2025

Approved for 1ssuance on behalf of Queensgate (formerly (Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid ), not in ns
mndvidual capacity but solely as Manager 1o Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a serwes trust of

DLAM Cayman Trust by:
BadaBodden

Marsha Smith

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements.

=i a
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(Expressed in Unated States dollars)

Ievestment incone(losses)

Irterest from fremaal assets ot for valoe I.'|n11¥]'| |1rcrﬂ1 or loss (Mode 5)
et change mwresalised (depregation)’ appraciationon finnaal asets

at Bar value ﬂrm#l PTI.‘EI or boss

Mat d“:lp: v immrealased :Wuuﬂiim’qﬂqhuﬁmﬁmlhm forwared CArTEncy

conlracts

et realised (bosses ) gu' e o forward ey SoTinnls and fc-r\ap

exchange ransact o

Met realised gaan' (losses) on finencial assets at fair value through profit

o less

Total income

Expe mees
I estment gt o 1_:'\';:H¢ 41
Diaerbaror fme (Bote 4)
Addmmi mstration Ree (Note 43
Custody fve (Mote 4)
Agent fee (Note 4)
Trmstee fime {MNote 4)
Audht fee
Legal fioe
Cithier eognefies
Total eperating expemes

MNet operating income

Fimnce cosls
Distnbations to Unitholders (Mote &)

Taxation
Withhol ding tax

Net decrease in nel assels from operations stiributable
to Unitholders

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

N
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Year ended Year ended
Jamery 31, 2025 Jummry 31, 2024

% 1,457,039 £ 1,403,300
(222.936) 1,980,058
449,854 {1,298.3594)
(1,365,247 503,785
471,458 i 1 SEE 196)

790, 168 1179552

160, 749 181 0

9,768 113,641

43,026 44,751

22 665 7,043

39,0127 43,425

19,957 14,999

62,719 10, 230

25,10 SRS

32123 51414

507,514 636,214

283 504 343,338
(1,154,307 ) (1,323,46%)
{4, 455) (G054
5 (BTG 168) b | TEETES)
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
— A SERLES TRUST OF DIAM CAY MAN TRUST

N N NN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

e o T . =

(Expressed in Unated States dollars)

Met asseis
atiribuiable io

Unitholde rs
Balance as at January 31, 2023 5 25,189 235
Units redeemed during the year (3,360,352
Nt decreaze innet assets from operations attributable to Unitholders during the vear (786, 785)
Balance as at January 31, 2024 21.042,09%
Units redeemed during the year 2,288.062)
Met decrease in net assets from operations attnibutable to Unitholders during the year (876, 168)
Balance as at January 31, 2025 5 17877868

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

L6
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FIIND CURRENCY SELECTION
_ﬂ SERLES Ili!':‘_I OF DIAM CAYMAN Ili_!':l'l

N

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2028
(Exgpressed in United States dollars)

Year ended Year emded
Janisry M, 2025 Janizary 3, 2024
Cash Bows from operting activities
et decrense in net assets resulting from operations atiributable to Unitholders § (B76.168) 3 {786, 755)
Adpasiments Lo recancile pel decheass m pel assel resuling lrom
aperalions bo nel cash (used m)/ provided by apentng acdnilics:
Distributions to Unithakders 1,184 507 1,313,469
Wet realsed (gams) ksses on fmancial assds al far vahie though profi of loss (471,458) 1,588,196
et chamge m unrealised depreciation’ (apprecabion) on fmancial assets al fair value
through profit or kes 111936 {1,980, 05 8)
et change m unrealised (spprecation)’ depreciation on forward cumency contracts (445, 854) 1,298,304
Tet soretion of discount {136.648) {T9,4%2)
Changes m assets and labilftes related 1o operations:
Diecrease m mieresd accrual 18568 1627
Decrease i olher assels . 4,362
Devrease innet bank overdradt (404} {114
Dexrease m mvesiment management fee payable {6.521) {5.716)
Decrease m distiributor Fee payable {3503} {4 114p
Decrease m agenl fee payable {1.54) {L755)
Increase’ (decrease) m admnstralion fee payable 126 (126}
Increase m sudd fee payable . 1479
Increase’ (decrease) m trustee fee payable | {1,4%6)
Decrease m castody fee pavable {103} (553)
Inscresse i olber fee payshle G217 1,54
Nt cash Qused imp provided by operating sctivites (533, 884) 1,378 851
Cash fows from Investing sctivities
Purchases of fmancal assels sl far vahse through profi or bess (18 880.316) (20,079,561 %)
Proceeds from sale of fmancil assets o far valae through profi or bes I0. 579032 T, 1000, 54
Nt cash provided by investing activities 3068 16 3500438
Cash Aows from fnandng aclivides
Redemptions paid 10 Unithokders {2,313,955) (3,358, s
Dastrbutions paid to Unithakders (1,154,507} {1333, 469)
Mool cush wsed in financing activilies (3 AGE.262) [4, 682,07 5)
Wet chenge m cash and cash equnvalents {34300 (385, T75)
Cash and cash equivalents at begnining of year 121,922 1,107, 667
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 TIR AT 5 TE,922
Supplementul disdosare of cash Mow information:
Interest recemved 5 1A85 607 5 1,499,526
TI.'DEﬁ]IIH 5 4. 455 1 6,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Organization

DHAM Cayman Trust (the “Trust”™) is an exempted unit trust established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant
to declaration of trust {the “Trust Deed™) dated June 29, 2001, The Trust commenced operations on June 29, 2011,
The Trust is regestered undder the Cayman Islands Mutual Funds Act with efTect from July 15, 2001, The Trust's place
of business is 25 Main Sireet, PO Box 694, Grand Cayman K'Y 1-1107, Cayman Islands

The Trust filed s securities registration statement on July 8, 201 1 pursuant to the Financial Instrument Exchange Law
with the Director of the Kanio Local Finance Bureau and a registration statement purswant to the Investment Trast
Law with the Comm issioner of the Financial Services Agency,

Global High Yiekd Bond Fund Currency Selection (the “Class Fund™) 15 a seres trust of the Trust. The investment
objective of the Class Fund is 1o seek high current income and the opportunity for capital appreciaiion mainly though
imvestment in a diversified portfolio of global high vield bonds, The Class Fund will follow a bottom-up approach
based on a fundamental analysis when selecting global high vield bonds.

2. Significant accounting palicies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Gnancial sttements are sel out below, These
policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated,

Basis of preparation: The fmanceal statements of the Class Fund have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Accountimg Standards) as msued by the International Accounting Standands
Board. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial habilities (including derivative financial mstruments) at fair value through
prefit or koss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of ceriain
critical accounting estimates. [t also requires the Trustee to exercise its judgment in the process of applyving the Class
Fund's accountmg policies. The areas mvolving a hogher degree of judgment or complexily, or areas where
assumplions and estimates are signficant to the Nnancial stalements are disclosed in Notes 2, 8 and 9,

All references to net assets throughout this document refer o net assets attnibutable to holders of Participating Units
uribess otherwise stated. Net assets per urt information as disclosed in Mote 7 has been determined as 1otal assets less
total liabilatses divided by the mum ber of catstanding units of each class of participating units,

fab Standards and amendments to exisiing standards effecive February 1, 2024

There are no standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effectve for annual pertods begmning on
Febrzary 1, 2024 that have a matenial effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund.

(B} New siardards, amerdnertts ard inferprelaiions issued bul nol effective for the financial vear beginning February
1, 2024 and nat early adapled

A number of new standards, amendments to tandasds and imerpretations are effective for annual periods beginming
after February 1, 2024, and have not been carly adopted in preparing these financial statements, Mone of these are
expected 1o have a material effect on the Ainancial statements of the Class Fund.
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VEAR ENDED JANUARY 31,2025

£, Significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
fal Classpfication

Assets

The Class Fund classifies us investments based on both the Class Fund's business mode] for managing those financial
assels and the contractual cash low characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed
and performance iz evaluated on a fair value basiz. The Class Fund is primarily focused on fair vabee information and
uses that information to assess the assets” performance and to make decistons. The contractual cash Alows of the Class
Fund's debt secunties are solely principal and imterest, however, these securities are nether held for the purpose of
cellecting contractual cash Aows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection of
comtractual cash Aows 1= only incidental to achieving the Class Fund's business model's objective. Consequently, all
mvestments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Liabilities
Dermvative contracts that have a negative farr value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

The Class Fund's policy reguires the Investrment Manager (Note 4 and Trustee (Note 4) to evaluate the information
about these financial assets and liabalities on a fair value basis together with their related financial information, for the
purpeses of making investment management decisions.

bl Recogniion, derecogrition and measurement

The Class Fund records secunty transactions on a trade date basis, recogmzing the cost or sales proceeds of securities
sold or purchased on a [irst-an-first-out basas, Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Class Fund commits fo purchase or sell the mvestment Fmancial asseis at fair value
through profit or loss are imitially recognised at fair valee.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights o receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Class
Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent to imatil recoprition, all financial assets at fuir value through profit o boss are measured at fur valoe,
Grins and losses ansing from changes in the fair valwe of the “fimancial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented m the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they anse.

el Fairvalue estimation

Fair valse 15 the price that would be recemved 1o sell an asset or pand to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction
between market pasiicipants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial assets iraded in active markeis (such
a3 publicly traded derwvatives and trading securities) are based on quotations provided by the market on which the
securities are traded on the last day of trading in the period. The Class Fund ubilises the last traded market price for
financial assets where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the last raded price
is ned within the bid-ask spread, management will determine the point within the bid-ask speead that is most
representative of fair value,

Investments or other assels for which market quetations are not readhly available from recogmzed price vendors will
e valued by prices furnished by investment services firms (such as brokers, dealers or other entitsex) or at their fair
value as determmed m good faith in accordance with the procedures adopted by the Trustee with the advice from the
Sub-Investment Manager (MNote 4). Premiums and discounts are amortised on an effective interest vield method to the
maturity of the investments to which they relate
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£, Significant accounting policies {continued)

(af Transfers berween levels of the fair valie hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the far value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred ot the begmning of the reporting
period,

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on demand and on short notice and all deposits
with onginal terms 1o maturity of not mere than 3 months. All of the Class Fund's cash and cash equivalemt balance
as at January 31, 2025 and 2024 & maintained with the Custodian of the Class Fund (Mote 4).

Margin: Margin includes margin cash held against the Class Fund's currency forwards.

Expenses: Expenses are accourted for on an accruals basis.

i i al ; Interest 5 recognised on a
hme m'pnﬂmnuu bn'ms i lhe ¢ITe¢1|\'¢ |.|'|1¢|'¢-'st meﬂmd Enwm mme mcludes interest from cosh and cash
equivalents. Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes interest from debt secunities,

Income taxes: Under the current laws of the Cavman Islands, there are no income, estate, transfer sales or other
Cayman Island taxes payable by the Class Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made i the
financial statements. Interest income earned by the Class Fund is generally subject to foreign withholding tax at source.
Withholding taxes on interest is shown as a separate line item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

The Class Fund invests i securities 1ssued by entities which are virtually all domiciled in countries other than the
Cayman Islands. Many of these foreign countnes have tax laws which indicate that capial gains taxes may be
apphicable to non-residents, such as the Class Fund, Tyvpacally, these capital gains taxes are requared to be determined
on a self assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Class Fund’s brokers on a
“withheolding™ basis.

AL Janusry 31, the Class Fund has measured its tax liabalities with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at nil. However,
there is a risk that foreign tax authorities will begin secking to collect taxes on capital pams camed by the Class Fund,
without giving any prior waming and possibly, on a retrospective basis, Any retrospective enforcement may result in
a substantial less to the Class Fund

Distribations: [hstributions to the Unitholders are classified as finance costs m the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (Mote &)

Difsetiing financial instruments: Financial assets and hakbaiies are offset and the net amount reported n the
Statement of Financial Postion where the Class Fund currently has a legally enforceable right 10 set-off the recogmsed
amounts and there is an intention to setile on a net basis or realise the asset and setile the liability simulizneously

Forward currency and spot foreign exchange contracts: Forward curmency and spot foreign exchange contracts are

carmed a1 far value. The gam or loss on open forward currency conitracts 15 caleulated as the difference between the

contfacted rate and the mie to close oul the contract, Net realised gainsTloses) on forwand currency contrmects and

foreign exchange transactions in the Statement of Comprehensive Income includes net gains and losses on contracts

that have been settled or offzet by other contracts with the same counterparty. Unrealised gain or loss on open forward

currency and spot foreign exchange contracts 15 calculated as the difference between the contract rate and the applicable

Eunv:u'd rate, based upon rates reported in published sources on the day of valuation, applied to the face amount of the
orward contract
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VEAR ENDED JANUARY 31,2025

£, Significant accounting policies {continued)

Translation of foreign currency amounts: Assets and liabilites denominated in currencies other than the United
States Dollar (US dollar™) are tranalated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the day of valuation. Foreign currency
meome and expenditure tems are convertad at the rate of exchange on the date of the tansaction. Gains and losses
on foreign currencies are inchuded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the vear in which they arise. The
Class Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes i forergn exchange rates
on investments from flhectuations ansing from changes in markel prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are
included with the net realised and unrealized gains{lesses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

¢ Items included in the Class Fund's financial statements are measured using
the US dollar (the “functional currency™), as the Class Fund primanly invests m US dollar denominated investments.
In addition, the Class Fund has adopied the US dollar as its preseniation currency.

Participating Units: The Class Fund ssues seven classes of units (Note 7) which are redeemable at the Unitholder's
opticn and do not have klentical nghts. Such Participating Unins are classified as (mancial habalities. The Participating
Units can be pat Back 1o the Class Fund by the Unitholder ot any business day for cash equal 10 o proportionate share
of the Class Fund’s net assets. The Participating Units are camied at the redemption amount that i1s payable at the
Statement of Financial Positien date if the Unithalder exercised their right to put the unit back to the Class Fund,

Redemptions pavable: Redemptions, whether expressed &= dollars or Units, are recognized as redemptions payahle
when each of the dollar or Unat amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed. As a result, redemptions
pard after the end of the yvear, but based upon the vear-end net asset valees, are reflected as redemplions payvabbe

Receivable from investments sold and pavable for investments purchased: These amounts represent receivahbles
for securities sold and payables for securiies purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered

on the statement of fimancial position date respectively. The receivables from mvestments sald balance is held for
collection.

These amounts are recogrused initmlly ol fir vahse and subsequently measured at amortsed cost. Al cach reporting
date, the Class Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts receivable from investments sold atan amaunt equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. 1€, at the
reporting date, the credit risk has not mereased significantly since imitial recognation, the Class Fund shall measure the
logs allowance at an amount equal 1o 12-month expected credn losses. Sipnificant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation, and default in payments are all considered
mdicators that a loss allowance may be required. [T the credit risk increases 1o the point that it is conssdered 1o be
credit impairec, interest income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss allowance
A significant increase in credit risk iz defined by management as any contractual pavment which is maore than 30 days
past duc. Any contractual payment which 1s more than 90 days past due 1s considered credit impaired.

3. Financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets s fair vahee through profit or loss are comprised of convertible bonds 00565 (2024: 0000#3), floating-
rite medes 3, 52% (2024: 11,207, ordinary bonds 95.92% (2024: 88 36%) and shares 0.0% (2024: 0,44%). The Bsuers
of theae securitics operate in a diverse range of industries with a significant concentration of US issued securities
TE65% (2024 57.45%%).

Investments include securities restricted in accordance with Rule 1444 under the Securities Act of 1933, which allows
for resale of such security among certain qualified mstintional buyvers. The total cost and fair value of the Rule 1444
Securities owned at January 31, 2025 is $11,283,54% (2024: $12,371.721) and 511,561,978 (2024 $12.612.461),
which represents 21,558 (2024: 21.55%%) of net assets at January 31, 2025,
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[nvestments range in maturity dates from October 31, 2026 to January 18, 2082 (2024: February 15, 2026 to September
25, 2083) and interest pates range from 1.625% to 13 % (2024: 1625% to 11,50 %) as of Januwary 31, 2025,

4. Material agreements amd fransactions

Distributor

On July 5, 2011, the Units Distribution and Repurchase Agreement was entered between Queensgate Bank and Trust
Company Ltd. and Mizuho Secunties Co., Ltd., under which that party acts as Distnibuter of units in Japan subject to
terms and conditions. The Distnbutor 15 entitled to recerve ot of the assets atinbutable to the Japan Publicly Offered
Units a fee of 00.51%% per annum of the Net Asset Value atiributable o such classes of units of the Class Fund. During
the year ended January 31, 2025, the Class Fund incurred distributor fiees of 599,763 (2024: 5113,641) of which
$23.452 (2024: 526,955) remains outstanding at year-end.

Trustes

On June 29, 2011, CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (formerly FirstCaribbean
International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limiated) became the trustee of the Trust. Pursuant 1o the Trust
Deed, the Trustee has exclusive authonty and overall responsibility for the Trust's administeation and management,
which includes the responsibility for distribution and redemption of units in the Trust The Trnstee has appointed
Mizuho Trust & Banking (Luxembourg) 5.A. 1o provide the day-to-day admimistration of the Class Fund.

The Trustee is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Valwe of the Units dunng the three
calendar months immediately preceding such quarter-end payable in US dollars m arrears within 30 days from the end
of each calendar quarter subject to a quanierly mimimum fee of $3, 750, Dunng the year ended January 31, 2025, the
Class Fund incurred trustee fees of 319,957 (2024: 514,999 of which 33,833 (2024; 33 832) remains outstanding at

year-end

Administration

On September 20, 2022, the Trustee and Manager on behall of the Class Fund have entered into an agreement with
Mizuho Trust & Banking (Lwcembourg) 5. A, under which, that party has been appointed to act as Administrator to
the Class Fund. For providing admmistration services 1o the Class Fund, the Admmistrator 15 entitled 1o receive, out
of the assats of the Class Fund, a fee ot the rate of 0.08% per annum, subject 1o a minmum fee of USS11,250 per
quarter, The Adminstratoss fee will be calculated and accrwed daily and pavable quarterly in armears. During the vear
ended January 31, 2025, the Class Fund incurred administration fees of 545,126 (2024: 344.751) of which 311,500
(200204 £11,374) remains ouistanding at yvear-end.

Investment manager

Asset Management One Co., Lid. (the “Investment Manager™y has been appointed as Investment Manager 1o the Trust
pursuant io the investment management agreement dated July 8, 2011, pursuant to which the Invesiment Manager 15
authonzed to supervise and direct the investment and reinvestment of assets in each account, with full authority and
at 115 discretion.

The Investment Manager is entitled 1o receive an annual fee of 0.755% of that pant of the net asset value which is
attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered Units payable quarterly imamears. During the year ended January 31, 2025,
the Class Fund incurred iy estrnent management fees of $160,749 (2024 $181,060) of whach $39 202 {2024: 545,724)
remains outslanding at vear-gnd,

The Investment Manager has delegated certain responsibilities to Jarus Henderson Investors US LLC (the “Sub-
Investment Manager™)
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4. Material agreements and transactions {confinued)

Custodian

Mizuho Bank (UUSA) (the "Custodian™) has been appointed as the Custodian to the Class Fund by the Trustee pussisant
1o a custody agreement dated July 8, 2011, The Custodian 15 entitled 1o recenve out of the assets of the Class Fund a
fee of 0.015% per annum of the net asset valwe, of such other fee as may be agreed between the Trustee and the
Custodian from time to time. During the year ended January 31, 2025, the Class Fund incurred custody fees of 522,665
(2024: $27.943) of whach 56590 (2024: $793) remains outstanding 81 vear-end.

nt

On July 5, 2011, the Agent Company Agreement was entered into between Queensgate Bank and Trust Company,
Ltd. and Mizuho Secunties Co., Lid. (the “Agemt™). The Agent Company Agreement 15 an agreement pursuant to
which the Agent, having been appointed by the Manager, agrees to submit the prospeciuses regarding the units of the
Class Fund to the Japan Securities Dealers” Association ("JSDA”), publicize the net asset value per unit and submit
the documents such as the financial statements and other documents to the JSDA. The Agent s entitled to recerve a
fee of 0.20%% per annum of the Net Assel Value attributable 10 the Japan Publicly Offered Units of the Class Fund.
Durisg the vear ended January 31, 2025, the Class Fussd mewrred sgent Tees of 539,027 (2024 543,425 of which
9,197 (2024: 310,571 ) remains cutstanding at year-end.

Manager

Cueensgate (formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid ) (the “Manager™) entered into an agreement with
the Trustee noted above on 29 June 2011 and entered into the Supplemental Trust Deed dated 29 June 2011 with the
Trustee.

The Manager prescribes management of the Class Fund's assets and issue and repurchase of the units of the Class
Fund. The Manager s entitled 1o receive oul of the assets of the Class Fund a fee of 0001%%6 per annum of the net asset
value subject toa quarterly minimum fee of 33,750, The Manager's fee will be accrued daily and calculated based on the
ret asset value as at the immedsately preceding day of valuation (daly) and payable quarierly in arrears. The Manager fee
has been included with the Investment Marager fee on the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Fimancaal
Posation.

Interes from financial assets at fair vabee through profit or loss is comprised of

Year ended Year ended
Jamuary 31, 20258 January 31, 2024
Investment income
Intereat coupon £ 1,320,391 £ 1,412,807
Aceretion of diseount 148,259 106,569
Amortisation of preminm (1611 (27.077)
3 L4s7.030 g LAg2. 200

&._Distributions

Drstributsons shall be made a1 the diseretion of the Trustee. The dstnbutions will be made o of the sum of the total
ned investment income (if any’), the net realized capital gains (if any) and the increase in net unrealized capital gains
(1f anv) earned by esch Class during the vear. Further, the Investment Manager may direct the Adminstrator on behalf
of the Trestee to pay distributions oast of the capital of the Class Fund if considersd necessary by the Investiment
Manager to maintain a reasonable level of distributions for the Class Fund,
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6. Distributions (continued)
During the year ended, the following disbursements were made:
Year ended Year ended
January 31, 2025 Jammry 31, 2024
D stribution paid from HYUSDERL 5 93,463 -3 138,483
D stribnation pasd from HYUSDBES] T1.941 74,839
Distrbugaon pred from HY AUDALID Q6,90 1,100,147
3 1,154,307 5 1. 323,460

7. Units in issue

Seven classes of Units are available for subscription, designated as follows:

Abbreviation  Class Unit description and eharacteristics

HYUSDUSD  USD(USD hedged) (MNon-Dastribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYUSDBERL  USD (BRL hedged) (Distribution) {Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYUSDBESI  USD{Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)
HYAUDAUD  AUD {AUD hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYIPYIPY  JPY (JPY hedged) (Dhstnbation)

HYIPYES] IPY (Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distnbution)

HYJPYBRL  JPY (BRL hedged) (Distribution)

The mmimum nitial subsenption amount for each of the USD (BRL hedged) (Distnibution) Class Units, USD
(Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Dastribution) Class Units and USD {USD hedged) (Non-Distribution)
Class Units by an investor 15 1 Unit and in incremental amounts of 1 Unit thereafter. The minimum instial subscription
amcamt for the AUD (AUD hedaed) (Distnbution) Class Units by an investor 15 | Unit and i ncremental amounts of
I Unat thereafter. The minimum imateal subscription amount for each of the JPY (Resource Country Currencies Basket
hedged) (Distribution) Class Units and JPY {(IPY hedged) (Distribution) Class Umnits and JPY (BRL hedged)

(Dristribution) Class Units is ¥ 10,000 and in incremental amounts of ¥1 thereafter

The Units of the Class Fund are redeemable s the option of the Unitholders on each dealing day. at a redemplion
price equal 10 the net asset value per unit as determined on such dealing day, provided that the redemption notice has

been received by the Trustee not bess than 1 business days prior to the relevant dealing day.

Unit tramssctions during the vesr ended Jomnry 31, 30235 are as follows:

MNel Asael
Value
Chass e Crpeniing U'ralis. Unidis Issued  Units Redeenswed  Closing Undis r Unli
HYALUDALUD ALD 655,905 - (61,796} 594,102 8.8
HYLUSDEEL UED IR2.759 = (30,647) 243112 1035
HYUSDESI UsD 60,907 - (2,820} 58087 16.81
HYLUSDASD UsR 23,566 = (3,761) 19,805 168.47
Unit tramsactions dhring the year ended Jamary 31, 2024 are as follows:
Mot Asset
Value

Chﬂ CurTency (8] U'niis Tndis Issued Units Rede ensed
HYALDALTY ALY 722041 - (43, 236)
HYLSDERL [ ] EEL = {14565, 005
HYUSDRS) UsED 63,248 - (2,341}
HYUSDASE: UsD 25,309 = {1,743)

4.
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I LUnits in issue {continued)

The Class Fund's capital is primanly represented by these Units. In accordance with the objectives outlined in Note |
and the risk management policies in Mote 8, the Class Fund endeavouss to invest the subseriptions received from
Unitholders inte appropriate investments while mamtaining sufficient hogwidity 1o meet redemptions, with such
liquidity being avgmented by short-term bosrowings or redemplion of investments where necessary, As of Jammry
31, 2025, all units of the Class Fund were held by two Unitholders (2024; two Unitholders).

8. Financial risk management

wa \ururt}' of financial risks: market risk {including price risk, currency nisk and
interest rate risk), credst risk and lnquidity risk. The Class Fund's overall nisk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to mimmise potential adverse effects on the Class Fund's fmancial
performance. The Class Fund uses forward curmency contracts 1o moderate certain risk exposures.

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital The maximum loss of capital on debt securities 13 limited
1o the fair value of these posttions. The maimum loss of capital on forward currency contracts is limited 1o the
noticnal contract values of those positions

e sk
The Chass Fund 15 exposad 1o debt securities and dervative price nisk. This anses from investments held by the Class
Fund for which prices in the future ase uncertain, Where non-monetary financial instruments are denominated in
currencies other than the USD, the price imtially expressed in foreign currency and then converted into USD will also
flucteate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The “Currency nisk™ paragraph below sets out how this
component of price nisk is managed and measured,

Dermvatives include instruments and contracts the value of which i linked to one or more underlying securities,
financial benchmarks or indices. The value of & derivative depends largely upon price movements in the underlymg
asset. Many denvatives provide significantly mare market exposure than the money paid o deposited when the
transaction is entered into. A relatively small adverse market movement can result not only in the loss of the entire
mvestment, but may also expose the Class Fund to the possibality of a loss exceeding the onginal amount invested.
There can be no assurance that dervatives that the Class Fund wish to acquire will be made avalable o any particular
tirmes on satisfactory terms or af all,

The Class Fund's policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other financial
instruments within specified limits set by the governing documents of the Class Fund, The Clazs Fund may engage
in ever-the-counter foreign currency forward contracts for the account of the Class Fund.

The Investment Manager does not manage the Class Fund's investment sirategy to track a benchmark or any other
index. At January 31, 2025, the Class Fund's market risk is affected by three main components: changes in actual
market prices, interest mate and foreign currency movements. [ the market prices of the bond portfolio (excludmg
forward contracts) af Jamuary 31, 2025 had increased by 108 with all other varables held constant, this would have
increased net assets attributable 1o Unitholders by appeccimately $1.686,165 (2024: 82,074 876), Conversely, if the
market prices of the bond portfolio at January 31, 2025 had decreased by 1074, this would have decreased net assets
attnibatable to Unitholders by appresamately % 86, 165 {2024: §2,074, 376}

The sensitivity analysis presented above is based upon the porifolio compostion (excluding forward contracts) as at
Jarwary 31, 2025, The composition of the Class Fund's mvestment portfolio is expected to change over time.
Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of January 31, 2025 15 not necessanly indicative of the effect on the
Class Fund's net assets in the future.
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B, Financial risk management (continued)

Currency risk:

The Class Fund will have exposure to fluctuations i currency exchange rates through investment of the Class Fund's
assels I investments denominated m currencies other than US dollars. The Class Fund intends to enter inlo currensy’
hedging transactions which are designed to reduce, but nol eliminate exchange-rate nisk and protectall or any part of
the assets from the curmency depreciation against U5 dollars. While the Class Fund will aim to hedge the curmency
exposure of the units 1o fluctuations between US dollars and the investment currency fully, the exposure will not
always be 100%% hedged mainly because the future value of the relevant investments will change

The markets in which foreign exchange transactions are effected are highly volatile, highly specialised and highly
technical Significant changes, including changes in lquidity and prices, can occour nsuch markets within very short
periads of ume, often within minutes

At January 31, 2025, the Class Fund's net assets and liabalities {excluding net assets attributable to Unitholders and
Class-specific forward currency contracts) denominated in foreign currencies are as [ollows:

January 31, 2025 January 31,2024
Amaounts Tk e msitivity™ Anwmis 10% sensitivity*
Britssh Pound 5 7781 s s 8861 856
Ewro 151,781 13,178 17968 1,797

5 155, 562 5 20,820

=AL January 31, 2025, had the exchange rate between the non US dollar and the U3 dollar increased or decreased by
1% with all other vanables held constant, the merease or decrease respectively innet assels attnbutable o Unitholders
would amount to approximately as noted above, excluding the impact of Class-specific forward currency contrcts,

All other assets and liabilities are denominated in U8, Dollar, except for Class-specific forward curmensy contracts
considerad below.

At Jaruary 31, 2025, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the US dollar increased or decreased by
10#%% with all other vanables held constam, the increase or decrease respectively in net assets {denominated in US
dollar) is shown below,

MNAY impact of 10%s
currency appreciation/
Currency depreciation C .
AL 1,006,926 AUDALUD, USDESI, JFYES]
ZAR 29215 JFYES1, USDES]
BRL 253,191 USDES], USDERL, JPYESEL JPYBRL

AL January 31, 2024, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the US dollar increassd or decreased by
10%e with all other variables held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assets (denominated in US
dollar) 15 shown below.

NAY impact of 10%
currency appreciation’

Currency depreciation Classes affecied *
ALD T2 152 AUDAUD, USDBSI, IFYBS1
FAR 32326 IFYBS1, USDBSI
BRL 321,543 USDBS1, USDBRRL, IPYBS1, JPYRRL
16 -
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8. Financial risk management (eontinued)

Currency risk (contimed):

*These sensitivity figures show the mpact on the Class Fund's overall NAV and Net Income. However, the impact
shown above for each currency would only have an effect on the Classes alfected as shown above and would not have
any impact on the other Classes,

In accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Manager momitors the Class Fund's net currency posation
on a daily basis.

The value of fixed income assets may change based on mnterest mate Muctuations. Tvpically, when interest rates
increase, the value of fixed income assets tend to depreciate. On the contrary when interest rate decreases, the value
of fixed income assets tend to appreciate, The degree of the change of the value of the fixed income asset will depend
on a number of factors includmg the matunty and conditions of 1ssuance of the fixed income asset.

Except for the Class Fusl’s fismncial assets ot fair value throwah peofit of loss, substantially all assets and labilities
have either interest rate repricang dates or maturity dates of less than 6 months. The Class Fund's financial assets at
Fuir value through profit or loss, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, i a3 follows:

Less than 1 Greater than  No repricing
year TtoSyears Stoldyears 10 years on maturity Total
January 31, 2025 - 8,386,340 8,125367 340,941 - 5 16861648
January 31, 024 . TR0RT60  10GE2 2 2,064,540 SLEID 5 20,748,759

At January 31, should miterest rates have lowered by 100 basis points with all other vanables remaining constant, the
increase in nel assels aiinibutable to Unitholders for the year would ameant to approsimately $840,116 (2024:
51,301 4640, ansing substantially from the increase in market values of debt secunties, 1§ interest rates had nisen by
100} basis points, the decrease in net assets would amount to approximately S776.700 {2024: 51,199.408). In
accordance with the Class Fund' s policy, the Investment Manager monitoss the Class Fund's overall interest sensitivity
o a daily basis,

The Class Fund is exposed to credit rizk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial
lozs for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation

The main concentration to which the Class Fund 15 exposed anses from the Class Fund®s investments in delbd securities.
The Class Fund is also exposed to counterpanty credin risk on rading denivative products, cash and cash equivalents,
mangin and other receivable balances. The Class Fund seeks to mategate its exposure to credit nisk by placing its cash

balances and transacting its securities activity with large financial institutions.

The Class Fund invests in global high vield bonds and other high yvield fixed meome securities to pursue income
generation, It is possible thal increased eredit risk may prevent the investment objective of pursuing a high level of
income gam from bemg achieved. High vield fixed income securities and lower-rated fixed mcome securities are
securities rated below Baa by Moody's, BBB by Fitch or BBE by 3&P. Lower-rated fixed income securities may be
below “mnvestment grade” and face ongomng weertanties and exposure o adverse business, Onancial of econemic
conditions that could lead to the issuer's inability to meet timely interest and principal payvments,

The lower mtings of certam securities held by the Class Fund reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the
financial condition of the 1ssuer, of in general economic conditions, or beth, or an unanticipated rise m inlerest rates,

may impair the ability of the 1ssuer to make payments of interest and principal, Such securities carry a higher degree
of default risk which may affect the capital value of an nvestment.

-17-
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The mability of sswers 1o make umely pavments of interest and principal may allfect the value of secunties held by
the Class Fund, In the absence of a liquid trading market for certaim securities, it may mot be possible (o establish the

fair value of such securities.

The rating assigned 1o a security by Moodv's, 58P or Frch does not reflect an assessment of the volatility of the
security's market value or the liquidity of the investment. A security may not necessanly be realised when its rating is
reduced below its rating at the time of purchase. Portlolio by rating category for each class of debt secunties 15 as

Follovrs:

Ordinary bonds
BEXF

BEE-

BB+

BB

BB

OO+

[

[

MNR*

Total ordirary bonds
Flaating rate mofes
EEB-

BE+

BB

EE-

B+

B

B-

D0C+

Todal Moating rute notes

Caomertible bands
BB
MR"

Total comvertible bonds

Jampry 31, 2025
% ol
Fair Value Forifolio

Jammry 3, 2024
%o ol
Fauir Vinlue FPartfalia

s 108,003 0.64%
207 698 1.23%
1024825 608
2,223,820 13.19%
2AS0.979 14.54%
3413689 20.31%
2820,043 16.72%
2,522,055 14.96%%
237518 4.97%
503,404 2.99%
6,939 0.04%
44,592 0.26%

- LT
430,204 2.07%
1,278,656 6.160%
4,063,768 19.5™%
AETT.073 18650
683,004 12.9%%
2,736,566 13,152

1,831,393 55
820,082 4.0
G03,214 2.91%

= (LIPS
- LT

16,173,565 95.03%

18333000 R3S

04,086 0.56%
60, 160 0.35%
- 0.00%

- 0.00%

195 605 1.16%

157,202 0.93%
86,802 0.51%
- 0.00°s

- LLLT
532840 257%
733,973 3.58%
207,183 10
652,623 3.15%

- QLT

RLL

1546, 430 .95

S.035 3.52%

2323.049 11.21%

30,889 0.18%
63,158 03725

94,047 0,55%

- LT
= 0P
= L

* The Investment Manager reviews and monitors the credit quality of unrated debt mvestimenis contimeously. As at
Janueary 31, 2025, the Investment Manager believes that these investments are of good credit quality.
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Credit risk {(continued);

Cash and cash equivalents which potentially expose the Class Fund to credit risk consist primarily of call balances
and placements with an orginal maturty of 3 months or less from placement. The cash equavalents are placed with
Mizuho Bank (UFSA) by the Custodian (which has an S&P eredit pating of A- (2024 A-)) and thus are et considered
to pose A significant credit risk. Margin is held with JP Morgan (which has an S&F credit rating of A- (2024: A-))
through a sub-custody arrangement and is also not considered to pose a sipraficant credit risk.

All transactions are settled/'pand for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default 15 considered minimal,
as delivery of securities sold = only made once the broker has received payment, Payment is made on a purchase ance
the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either panty fails to meet its obligation.

The counterpartses to the Class Fund's non-exchange traded derrvative contracts are major financial mstitutions.
Management does not consider that credit nsk related 1o open derivative contracts will have & matenal adverse effect
on the financial condition of the Class Fund,

The Class Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of defwult, exposure ot default and
loss given default. Management considers both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining
any expected credut loss. Management considers the probability of default to be close to zero as the counterpartics
have a strong capacily to meel their contracizal obligations in the near term. As a resull, no loss allowance has been
recognised based on | 2-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be whelly insignificant 1o the
Class Fund.

In secordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Sub-Investment Manager monitars the Class Fund's credin pesation
on a daily basis,

Liquadity risk iz the risk that the Class Fund may not be able to penerate sullicient cash resources 1o settle its
obligations in full as they fall due or can only do =0 on terms that are materially dsadvantageous.

The Class Fund may periodically invest in denvative contracts and debt securities that are traded over the counter. As
a result, the Class Fund may not be able 1o hguidate quickly its investments in these instruments al an amount close
to their fair value to meet its liquadity requirements, or be able to respond to specific events such as deterioration in
the creditworthiness of any particular 1ssuer.

As at January 31, 2025 and 2024, all the unrealised gains and losses on forward currency contracts mature within 940
davs or bess.

Participating Units are redeemed on demand at the Unitholder's option. However, the Trustee does not foresee that
this contractual maturity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash cutflows, as holders of these instruments
typically retain them for the medium 1o long term.

Ag at January 31, 2025 and 2024, all other liabilities of the Class Fund had a contractual maturity of less than one
manth. The Investment Manager monntors the Class Fund's hiquidity position on an ongoing basis.

The Class Fund may invest directly or mdirectly, in markets where custodial and'or setthement systems are not fully
developed. The assets of the Class Fund which are traded in such markets and which have been entrusted to sub-
custodians, in crrcumstances where the use of such sub-custodians is necessary, may be exposed 10 certain nsks. Such
risks include, but are not limited 1o, a nondrue delivery versus payment seitlement, a physical market, and as 2
consequence the circulation of forged securities, poor mformation in regards to corporate actions, registration process
that wpacts the availability of the securties, lack of appropriate legalfiscal mifrastructure and lack of
compensation/risk fund with a central depository,

=12
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8. Financial risk management (eontinued)

Custody risk {continued):
The Class Fund maintains a custody account with s prime broker and pnmary custodian (see Note 4). Although the

Trustee mondtors the Custodian, and believes that they are appropriate custodians, there 5 no guarantee that the
Custedian, of anv other custadian that the Class Fund may use from time (o tme, will ot become msolvent. While
both the U5, Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
i the event of a failure, nsolvency or hguidation of a broker-dealer, there 1s no certainty that, m the event of a fanlurs
of a broker-dealer that has custody of Class Fund assets, the Class Fund would ot mneur losses dus 1o 115 assets being
unavailable for @ peried of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both. Beeawse substantially all of
the Class Fund's assets are custodsed with one custodian, such losses could be s:ignlﬁcﬂnt and could matermlly 1m pair
the ability of the Class Fund to achieve its investment objective.

FEair value disclosures;
In accordance with IFRS 13, the Class Fund is required to classify fair valse measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used inmaking the measurements, The fair value hierarchy has the following

levels:
+  Cueoted prces (unadjusted) m setive markets for identical assets or labilities (level 10

+  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset or liability, efther directly
(that 15, as prices) or indirectly (that 15, dermved from prices) (level 2).

+  Inputs for the asset or liability that are net based on observable market data (that 15, unobservable inputs) (level
3.

Thelevel in the Fuir value hierarchy within which the fanr value measurement 15 categorized m i1s entirety is determined
on the basis of the lowest level mput that is significant 1o the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose,
the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If & fair value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significam adpstiment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement 1s a level
3 measurement, Assessing the significance of a particular input 1o the fair value measurement in s entirety requires
Judgreni, conssdening factors specific to the asset or lability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable’ requires significant judgment by the Class Fund. The Class Fund
considers observable data 1o be that market data that is readily available, regularly distnbuted or updated, reliable and
verifmble, not proprictary, and provided by independent sources that are sctvely imvolved in the relevant market.

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Trust's financial aesets and liabilities (hy class)
measured at fair value:
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As al January 31, 2023 Level | Livel 2 Lavel 3 Tatal
Axls
Convertitde bonds -] - 5 M7 5 - L 94,047
Floating rate notes - S0 035 - 04,0335
Crrclinsary bomeds - 16,173,566 - 165,173, 566
Unrealizad gain on forward

currency contracts - 303,050 = 03,000
Total assels - - % 17,164,738 & - 5 17,164,738
Liahilities
Unrealized loss on forward

CLETENCY contracts 5 - s (243.272) % - 5 (243,272)
Total liabilities 5 - £ c113£?2r £ £ (243, 272)

8. Financinl rick mamgement {continued)
Eair value diselosures (gontimicd)

AsalJunuary 31, 2024 Level 1 Livel 3 Lavel § Tutal
Annels
Floating rate notes 5 - 5 2323045 5 - 5 2323049
Credinary bomds - 18,333 S0 - 18,333,900
Hhuares 91,810 . - 9,810
1.rlﬂ'ﬁll1-'.'lﬂ! Sjlill omn ﬁ.‘r\.\'.lrd

CLITENCY contracts - TS5 = TS5
Total assets 5 G910 S 20727854 5 - 5 20819.674
Linhilities
Unrealized loss on forward

CUITeney contracts ] - 3 (4605951 5 - 5 (A0L5951 )
Total Babilities 5 - & [460251) § - 3 {460,551 )

Financial mstruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or allemative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified withmn level 2
These include most corporate and convertible bonds, certam non-US sovereign obligations, mortgage backed
securities and some over-the -counter derivatives, As level 2 mvestments include positions that are ned traded in active
markets and'or are subject 1o transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and’or non-
transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

Investments classafied within level 3 have significant unobservable mputs, as they trade infrequently or not at all. As
observable prices are not available for these secunities, the Class Fund has used valustion technigues to denive the fair
value, At January 31, 2025 and 2024, the Class Fund held no level 3 investments.

o el § ANl b e 1 c il i "
The Class Fund i reguired to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented m the Statement of
Financial Position to emable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements on s financial pesition for recognized assets and liabilities. These assets and lmbilities include certain
financial instruments ard denvative instruments that are either subject o an enforceable master netling armangement,
or samilar agreement. As at January 31, 2025 and 2024, the Class Fund had derivative assets and liabilities that are
subject to three master netting armangements with s derivative counterparties.

The Class Fund and its counterparties have elected 1o settle all transactions on a gross basis however, each party has
2.

121/209



EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E25766)
0O00000000000000000

I NCY N
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

Il NAMN M

the option to settle all open contracts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party. Per the terms of the
master petting aprecment, an event of defaull incluwdes the following

&« fanlure by a party to make payment when due;

#  failure by a party to perform any obligation required by the agreement (other than payment) if such failure is not
remedied within 30 days after notice of such falure i given to the party;

#  bankrupicy,

The Fund has elected not to offset fr vahee amounts recognized for cash collateral recervables and payables against
Fair valee amounts recegnized for derivative positions executed with the same counterparty under the same master
netling arrangement.
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8. Financial risk management {comtinued)

Offzsetting and amounts subject to master netting amangements and similar agreements (contmued):

The following tables present the Class Fund's financial assets and liabilities subject to affsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar agreements. The tables are presemed by twpe of financial instrement,

Financial assets subject to offsctiing, enforceable master netting amangements and similar agreements:

A B C=A-B
Gross amounts of  Gross amounts of et amounts of
recognised recognised financial assets
financial asaets financial presented in the
lisbalities set-off  statement of fnancial
in the statement position
of firancial
position
Description
202s
Forward currency contracts -3 3090 % - ] 303,050
s 303 (MM
24
Forward currency contracts 5 70915 % - 5 W95
5 T0O1E
C=ARB D E=C.D
Met amounts of Related amount Met amount
financial assets not set-off in the statement of
presented m the [nancmal postion
Aatement of i) and DXid) IXii) Colkateral
financial position Financial received
[nstruments
Counterparty
s
Counterparty | 3 ER (U] 5 ERLY | -3 - § -
Counterparty 2 200,985 183,377 - 116,612
5 03,090 5 186,478 5 - 5 116,612
C=ARB D E = C.[}
Met amounts of Related amount et amount
financial assets nct set-off m the statement of
presented m the financial position
Aatement of i) and D) i) Collateral
financial position Financial received
[nstruments
Counterparty
2024
Counterparty | -3 4638 5 4638 $ - 5 -
Counterparty 2 66,277 66,277 - -
E 0,915 H 70,915 ] - 8 -
23-
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Offsetting and amounts subject to master netting arangements and similar agreements (contmued)

Deseription
025
Forward currency contracts

2024
Forward currency contracts

Counterparty
2025

Counterparty 1
Counterparty 2

Counterparty
2024

Counterparty 1
Counterparty 2
Counterparty 3
Counterparty 4

A B C=AB
Gross amounts of  Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
recognised recognised financial
financial fimancial assets liahilities
habilities set-off inthe presented m the
statement of statement of
financial position  financial position
5 M3 5 - 5 243272
5 243,272
5 460951 5 - 5 460951
5 461,951
C=AB L E=CD
Met amounts of Related amounts not set-off in the et amount
financial statement of financial position
lihilities i) and TN i) IXii) Colkateral
presented m the Financaal pledged
statement of [nstruments
financial position
5 50,895 5 31m 5 - £56,794
183,377 183,377 . .
£ 143272 ] 186,478 5 - 556,794
C=AB ] E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amounts not set-ofl in the et amount
financial statement of financial position
liabihities i) and D) D) Collateral
presented m the Financaal pledped
statement of [nstruments
financial position
- 6,050 5 4,638 5 - 5 1,412
450,359 66,277 - FR4082
4,525 - - 4,525
17 - - 17
5 460,951 5 70,915 5 - 5 390,056
- 24
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B, Financial risk management (eontinued)

Offzsetting and amounts subject to master netting amangements and similar agreements (contimued):
Amourits in D) and D{i) above relate to amounts subject to set-off that do not qualify for offsetting under (B) above.

This includes (1) amounts which are subject to set-off against the asset (or hability) disclosed in “A° which have not
been offset 1n the statement of financial position, and (i) any financial collateral (including cash collateral), both
recetved and pledged.

9. Assets and labilities not carried at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed

Investments are carried at fair valee. The carmymg values of all other fimancial assets and habibties are carmed at
amortised cost; their earryving values are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents inchade cash m hand, deposits held with banks and other short-term investments inan active
market. Cash and cash equivalents have been determined using level 1 inputs. Mangin meludes restrnicted cash balances
held as margin of collateral For foreign currency forwards trading. Margin has been determaned using level | inputs

Recevable from investments sold and other receivables include the contractual amounts for settlement of trades and
other cbligations due to the Class Fund, Payable for investments purchased and accruals represent the contractual
amcunts and obligations due by the Class Fund for settlement of trades and expenses. These recevables and payables
have been determined using level 2 inputs.

The putiable value of Paricipating Units &5 caleulated based on the net difference between total assets and all other
liabalities of the Class Fund in accordance with the Class Fund's governing documents. These Participating Units are
not traded on an active market A demand feature s attached 1o these units, as they are redeemable at the Unitholders'
option and can be put back to the Class Fund at any dealing date for cash equal 1o a proportionate share of the Class
Fumd's et asset value attnibutable to the Unit Class (Motes 2 and 7). The fair value is based on the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. The impact of discounting i this
mslance 15 nod material As such, Level 2 1s deemed 10 be the mest appropriate categonsation for nel assels attnbutable
o Unitholders

10, Commi

In the normal course of business, the trustee and'or Manager (“Management™) on behalf of the Trust enters into
contracts that contain a variely of representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications.
hanagement’s maximum exposure under these amangements 13 unknown, a3 this would involve future claims that
may be made against Management that have not yet occwrred, however, based on expenence, Management expects
the sk of loss 10 be remote.

115§ eni events

From Febraary 1, 2025 through June 13, 2025, the Class Fund received no subscriptions, paid redemptions amounting
to $16,784 to Class USD Unitholders and AUD3T72616 to Class AUD Unitholders and dividends amounting to
571,220 to Class USD Unitholders and AUDSE6,450 10 Class AUD Unitholders.

Subsequent events were evaluated up until June 13, 2025, which was the date that the linancial statements were
available to b izsued,
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ESTMENTS (U
VAR ENDED FANUARY 5L 628
AMORTIZED FAIR e OFNET
DUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIFTION COST VALUE ASSETS
COMVERTIBLE BONDS
30000 AMC NETWORKS INC BDS 3352 24- 15220 £ 10 079 30,ERD 017%
42000 HERBALIFE LT BIXS 4255 22-15/4/28 31,710 31358 i 158%
31000 TRAVERE THERAPEUTICS PNC BDS 2.25% 22- 10329 29,819 A1LE0D 01 5%
TOTAL CONVERTIRLE BOXDS &) 508 94,047 0.5
FLOATING-RATE NOTES
a3000  ALGONQUDN POWER & UTILITIES CORP BDS FTV 22-18/' 1782 38,244 60,160 3%
100,000 ARCUNDTOWN SA BDS 1 625% 1 -PERP Be 514 4,084 .5%%
200,000  ELECTRICITE DE FRANCE SA BDS 3.375% 2-FERP 174,701 135,605 1065
150,000 IPD3 BV BDS FRM 24- 1576731 162,713 157,202 0.8T%
100,000 REMO DE MEDHCT SFA BDS FRM 24-154729 00 568 R6,B02 {49
TOTAL FLOATING-RATENOTES 572742 S04.035 330%
ORDINARY BONDS
HOH ADIENT GLOBAL HOLDINGS LTI BDS 7,5% 25-1 52/33 44,000 44,592 0.2
100,000  ADLER FELFER HOLDING GMBH BDS 9.5% 23-1/4/27 100,506 100,978 0.57%
TEOM  ALGOMA STEEL INC BDS 9.125% 24-154/29 TR, 000 78,382 [ )
200,000 ALLIED UNIVERSAL HOLDOD LLCAALLIED UNTY BOS 462 5% 21-1/6/28 189,500 190,726 1.0T%
113,000 ALPHA GENERATION LLC BDE 6.75% 24-15/10/32 113609 114,302 LR
10,0 ALTICE FRANCE 5A BDS 3.375% 19-15/1/28 RS, 064 B4313 LU
6000 AMC NETWORES INC BDS 1025 24-15/129 37,620 38531 1,22%
110,000 AMC NETWORKS INC BDS 8.35% 21- 152020 B 655 87184 0409
125,000  AMER SPORTS OO0 BDE 6,75 24-1652731 125,895 128,602 0.7
122,000 AMERICAN AIRLINES INC BDS 8.5% 23- 155419 126,145 128,827 0.71%
146,117 AMERICAN AIRLINES [NCYAADVANTAGE LOYVALT BDS 5.75% 21-30/4'H0 140,660 145,855 0.82%
100,000 AMS-05RAM AG BDS 10.5% 1330320 116,272 102,570 5T
102,875 ARD FINANCE SA BDS %% 19-306/27 115,407 6,939 08
100,000 ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING FIN. USA LLC ! ARDAG BDS 3% 21-1/929 R k] B R3G 0500
60000 ARETEC ESCROW [SSUER 7 INC BDS 10% 23-158730 61,971 66, e 0.37%
100,000 ARSEMBLIN CAVERION GROUP AE BDS 6,15% 2417773 197,715 108,492 0.6 1%
100,000 ASTON MARTIN CAPITAL BOLDINGS LTD BDE 10,375% 24-313129 127,975 124,038 0657
BL000 BATH & BODY WORKS [NC BDS 6.9%% 03- 17133 9,637 B2 1T [ ()
170,000 BEAZER HOMES USA INC BDS 7.5% 24-15/331 170,764 171,770 0.90%
1,00 BOMEBARDIER [NC BDS 7,45% 04-1/534 105,250 105,380 0.5%%
226,000 BROADSTREET PARTNERS INC BDS 5 875% 21-154/729 200,238 Il 1.24%
B0 CARVANA OO BDS 13% 23-1/674) 92,735 93,382 0.51%
13,000 OO0 HOLDIMGS. LLC ! OO0 HOLDINGS CAPITAL BDS 4.25% 20.1/2/31 Bi,649 91,475 0.51%
200,000 CDER FIREFLY BIDCO PLC BDE B625% 24-3004/29 235,178 157,053 148
A0 CELANESE US HOLIINGS LLC BDS 6.379% 22-1 %7132 I8R50 39,182 0.21%
SEO0  CELANESE US HOLINNGS LLC BDE 6, T% 23-15/1 1733 60,235 60,205 0348
TIOM  CHARTER COMMURNICATIONS OPERATING LLC/ C BDS 6,55% 24-1/6/34 80,521 79,006 048
100,000 CHEPLAPHARM ARFNEIMITTEL GMBH BDS 7,5 2315520 105,152 L 548
TO00  CIVITAS REBOURCES INC BDS 8625 23-1/11/30 60,472 60,533 1.30%
99000 CLEAR CHANNEL QUTDOCOR HOLDINGS INC BDS T8753% 24-1/47340 99, TA3 102,482 0.5T%
200,000 CT INVEST. GMBEH BDS 6,375 2d= 15430 217,041 Tla,048 1.21%
100,000 EDGE FINDO PLC BDS B, 125% 24- 158731 131,085 [N 0.71%
100,000 EMNANEERING « INGECGHNERIA INFORMATICA « BDS B 625 25-152/30 I8, 000 10, 00 fa0fe
57 EWNOVA INTL INC BDS 9.125% 24- 182 50,000 60,128 [
100,000  ERAMET 5A BDS 0.5% 24-301 1729 107 898 101,563 0.5T%
49000  FIRSTCASH INC BDS 5.675% 21-1/1/30 47,677 AB,041 0.2T%
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AMOETIZED FAIR e OFNET
QUANTITY - SECURITY DESCRIFTION COST VALUE ASSETS
OROMNARY BONDS (CONTINUED)
JER000  FMG RESOURCES ALGUST 2006 PTY LTI EDS 612326 22.1 5432 5 ITEAS 8 2HGH3G 1.60%
100 FOUNDATION BUILDING MATERIALS INC BDS 6% 21-1/3729 107,581 107,544 0.60%
Ba000  FRONTIER OOMM. HOLIHMNGS LLC BDS 862 5% 231573731 s () 95,147 0.53%
252,000 FTAIINFRA ESCROW HOLDINGS L1C BDS 1005% 212-1/807 246,500 207,462 1.50%
137000 FULL HOUSE RESORTS INC BDS 8259 21-15278 140,719 137,05 0.77%
100,000 GARDA WORLD SECURITY CORP BDS 6% 21-1/020 SL024 102 060 0.57%
127000 GARDA WORLD SECURITY CORP BDE 83782, 24-15/11732 127,719 131,280 0.73%
122,000 GGAM FIN. LTD BDS 5.873% 24-153/3) 123,369 121096 0.68%
64,000 GEAM FIN, LTD BDS 8%, 231 56728 4339 67,732 0.38%
A5000  GLATFELTER OORP BIDE 7.25% 24-15111/31 55,000 54245 0.30%
103,000 GOEARY LTDBDS 7.625% 24- 1720 1L 219 106,524 0.60%
197,000 HEARTLAND DENTAL LLC / HEARTLAND DENTAL BDS 105% 23-30/4/28 00920 210,337 1L18%
100,000 HELIOS SOFTWARE HOLDINGS INC / [1ON CORF BDS 787 5% 24175729 107,130 106,404 0.60%
13,000 HILTON GRAND VACATIONS BORROWER ESCROW BDS 4875% 21-1/7731 10,19 102,736 0.57%
200,000 HLF FIN. SARL LLC / HERBALIFE INTL INC BDS 12.25% 24-1 54729 198, 140 210,085 1.18%
200,000 HOUSE OF HR GROUP BV BIG 9% 22-371 129 197,506 210,318 1.18%
17500 HOWARD MIDSTREAM ENERGY PARTNERS LLC BDS T.375% 24: | 57732 175,70 152,072 1.02%
65,000 HUSEY INIECTION MOLDNG SYSTEMS LTD TITA BDS 26 241527240 47,231 8,367 0.38%
100,000 FCELAND BONDCO PLC BDS Me875% 23131227 140,608 130,568 0.73%
132,000 JB POMDENTER, & CO INC BDS 8.75% 231571221 134161 L0685 0.79%
153,000 KOHL'S OORP BDS 3.375% 21-1/5431 110,901 121674 0.60%
100,000 LABDRATOIRE EIMER SELAS BDS 5% 21-12729 B5EEA B, 254 0,54%
119,000 LATAM AIRLINES GROUP 5A BDS 7.875% 24-154/30 119,194 120,125 0.67%
104000 LEM ACQUISITION LLC BDS 6.25%, 20- 1571720 98,031 g, | 50 0.54%
A0 IE0  LEVEL 3 FIN, INC BDS 10% M- ¥ 1032 375 40,004 0.22%
57256 LEVEL I FIN, INC BDS AR78: 74.1 8629 ALEI3 49,594 0.78%
186,000 LGI HOMES 1NC BDS 4% 21-157/20 150,478 169,647 0,058
BA000  LGE HOMES INC BDS 7 24-1 5711132 B,000 83809 0.4
147,000 LIFE TIME INC BDS 6% 24-1571 1731 147,000 [ELAL S 0.82%
270,000 LIFEPCINT HEALTH INC BDS 10% 24106732 IELO3 208895 1.50%
4R000  LIFEPOINT HEALTH INC BDS 11% 231571030 52,680 53,082 0.30%
100,000 LLINE HOLDINGS SARL BDS 5.625% 21-15/11/28 80,341 TAAT1 0.41%
175000 MACY'S RETAIL HOLDINGS LLC BDES 6.125% 22157337 164834 165,600 0.93%
200,000 MARKET BIDCO FINCO PLC BDS 5.5% 22401 1127 236,638 240,123 1.34%
100,000 MALBER PACKACHNG SOLUTICNS HOLINNG OO BIDE 9,259 331 5/4/27 100,074 101,958 0.57%
IR0 MOGRAW-HILL EDUCATION BNC BDS 7375% 24-1/431 142 498 143,820 0.80%
54000 METIS MERGER SUB LLC BDS 6.5% 21- 155720 5545 37,301 0.32%
STOM MIDCONTINENT COMM. BDS 8% 24-1 8732 $7000 9, Tl 0.5%
TIRDO0  MIDWEST GAMING BORRCWER LLC /P MIDWEST G BDE 4875 21.1/529 5,542 112631 0.63%
164000  MNERAL RESOURCES LTD BDS 9.25% 13- 1110428 167,729 173,778 0.97%
200,000 MOZART DEET MERGER SUB INC BDS 5.25% 21- 1110720 198,756 203,383 L.14%
BO0M  MURPHY CHL CORP BLIS 6% 24-1/10732 TRA9S Tr387 0,43%
T2,000  MATIONSTAR MORTGAGE HOLDIMNGS INC BDE 7,125 24-1/2/32 TIOE 74,250 0,42%
1000 MEXNTERA ENERGY OPERATING PARTNERS LP BDS 7.25% 23-15/1/20 191 851 189,351 1.0:a%
55,000 MOVELIS CORF BDS 3.25% 21-1511126 51,805 33,297 0.30%
BA000  MOVELIS CORP BDS 3875% 21-15831 TIA59 T3 761 0.41%
44,000 MOVELIS INC BDS 6 8752 25307130 44000 45,063 0.25%
Of, 000 MRG ENERGY INC BDS 6% 2-1/233 89621 BR 00T 0.£0%
92,000 NWRGENERGY INC BDS 6. 25% 24-1/11/34 92000 0,851 0.51%
200,000 OEG FIN. PLC BDE 7.25% 24-27020 224,906 2758 1.22%

.37,
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YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2025
AMORTIZED Y OF NET

QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIFTHON COST FAIR VALUE  ASSETS

CRDINARY BONDS (CONTINUED)

200,000 OLYMPUS WATER US HOLDING CORP BDS 7.25% 24-154/31 5 0000 5 204,251 1.14%
43,000 ONEMAIN FIN, CORFP BDS 3,5% 21-15/1/27 3027 41444 0.23%
137,000 ONEMADR FIN. CORP BDS 4% 20159730 106,090 123,030 0.68%
06000 ONEMADN FIN. CORP BDS 7.025% 24-13/11731 Rectii] agRI2 0.55%
242000 ORGANCEN FIN. | LLC BDS 5.125% 21-30/4731 216500 218912 L%
120,000 PATRICE INDUSTRIES INC BDS 6.375% 24-1/11/32 119,570 118236 0.66%
143,000 PENN NTLGAMING INC BDS 4.125% 21-1/7729 119,667 130,373 0.73%
120,000 PENNYMAC FIN, SERVICES INC BDS 5,75% 21-159/3] 113,092 116,180 0.65%
172,000 PECARD MIDOOD [NC BIS 6.5% 2231329 160,672 168,422 0.85%
100,000 FINNACLE BIDOD FLC BDS 10% 23-11/10/28 121,350 132464 0%
100,000 PINNACLE BIDOO PLC BDS 8.25% 23- 11110028 105,115 110,576 0.62%
11000 POST HOLDINGS INC BDE 6.375% 24- 17333 105,829 105,608 0.61%
TER000 RAND PARENT LLC BDS 8.5% 2319230 167,813 174,420 0.85%
Bo 000 RINGCENTRAL INC BOS 8.5% 23- 15830 89323 91420 0.51%
112,000 RITHM CAFITAL CORP BDS 8% 24-1/4/20 110,859 113,472 0.63%
158,000 ROCKET SOFTWARE INC BDS 6.5% 21152729 148,753 150,022 0.84%
43,000 ROCKET BOFTWARE INC BDS 0% 24-2871 1128 44,550 44,607 0.25%
FM000  STANDARD INDAUBTRIES INCTN) BDS 3.375% 20151731 335,721 AZE105 1.84%
19,000 STATION CASINGS LLC BDS 4,625% 21-1/1231 17243 17,276 0.10%
135,000 STONEN GROUP [NC BDS 7875% 24-1/3731 156604 183,321 0.91%
100,000 EUMMER BC HOLDOD B SARL BDS 5.75% 19-31/10026 107,756 104, 60 0.58%
10,000 SURGERY CENTER HOLDINGS INC BDS 7,23% I4-15/4/32 9875 9988 0.06%
206,000 TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTNERS LPJ TALLGRASS BN BDS 6% 21-10031 268,246 234,558 1.50%
B0 TASEKO MINES LTD BDS 8.2 5% 24-1/330 00,981 9242 0.51%
180,000 TECHEM VERWALTUNGEGESELLSCHAFT 675 MBH BDS 5.375% 24-157/20 196,521 192,807 108
147,000 TERRAFORM POWER OPERATING LLC BDE 4.75% 19-15/130 147,048 135, 8452 0T6%
100,000 TEVA FHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLAN BDS 1.625% 16-15/ 10628 84400 9708 054%
200,000 TEVA FHARMACEUTICAL FINAKCE NETHERLANDS BIS 4,375% 219530 217550 22,550 L%
135,000 THOR INDUSTRIES INC BDS 4% 21-1910/2% 114,420 123,350 06%%
163,000 TRANSDIGM INC BDE 4875% 21-1/529 151,085 154,058 0872
164,000 TRONON INC BDS 4.625% 21-15329 147,998 I4B.ET Q83
57000 UNESYE ODRP BIS 6.875% Mk1111127 56,178 36351 031%
$000  UNITIGROUP LI/ UNITI FIBER HOLINGS INC BDS 6% 21-151030 50,445 51,597 026%
06000 UINIVESION COMM. INC BDS 4.5% 21-1/%29 BL628 BrAT2 LAty
000 UNIVISION COMM. [N BDS 7.375% 22-3006/30 72423 73,303 041%
121,000 UNIVISION COMM. INC BDS 8% 23-158/728 121,313 124,003 QLaty
BLOOO  UNIVISION COMM. INC BDS B 5% 24-307/31 B1000 R, 300 0-86%
SE000 USA COMPRESSION PARTNERS LP/ LBA COMPR BDS 6.87 5% 19119727 58543 SEA20 033%
7000 VENTURE GLOBAL LNG INC BDS 8.128% H.106/28 7,408 50,592 0%3%
191,000 VERDE PURCHASER LLC BDS 10.%% 23-30/11/30 198,100 X782y 116%
122,000 VICTRA HOLDINGS LLC S VICTRA FIN. CORP BLSE 8.75% 3-15%20 124,100 128386 072%
100,000 VIRGIN MEDIA O2 VENDOR FIN. NOTES V DA BDS 7.8753% 24157332 127424 123322 Qa%n
153,000 WATODO08 LLE S WATOD FIN, CORP BIS 7.128% 24- 1032 153,000 158,772 0§0%
197000 WILSONART LLC BDS 11% 24-15832 197,000 197,165 L10%%
207,000 WYNN MACAL LTD BOS 5629% 20-200/28 263,867 297,578 1.61%
107,000 WYNN RESORTS FIN. LLC/ WYNN RESORTS Ca BDS 6.23% 24-133/33 106,761 106,108 050y
000 ZAYD GROUP HOLDINGS NC BDS 6.125% 20-17328 27.512 20623 015%
TOTAL ORDINARY BONDS 15,984,512 16,173,566 047%
TOTAL VALUE OF INVESTMENTS 1 T62 1684l 548 B 33%
OTHER ASSETS, NET OF LIABILITIES 1016221 508N
NET ASSETS £ 17E77.E6R 100,007

=28
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2025

18,589,993 2,674,542,293
751,778 108,158,301
3,353,175 482,421,287
2,602,065 374,359,092
991,935 142,709,688
16,923,380 1,566,766,520

19,805

242,467

57,987

581,222
169.31 24,359
10.73 1,544
17.11 2,462
29.12 2,696
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2025 2,000,000 8,774
10,000,000 2,000,000
2025 4,457,386 4,128
One
2025 24 371

500
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2024 2023 12 31
2024 2023

7,248,286 1,042,811 6,786,842 976,423
441,126 63,465 309,878 44,582
17,002 2,446 59,294 8,531
53,453 7,690 62,257 8,957
7,759,867 1,116,412 7,218,271 1,038,493
33,307 4,792 60,251 8,668
7,793,174 1,121,204 7,278,522 1,047,161
360,074 51,804 527,595 75,905
89,695 12,904 282,275 40,611
449,769 64,708 809,870 116,516
2,000,000 287,740 2,000,000 287,740
5,343,405 768,756 4,468,652 642,905
7,343,405 1,056,496 6,468,652 930,645
7,793,174 1,121,204 7,278,522 1,047,161

133/209



10

2024

EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E25766)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 31
2024 2023

4,816,936 693,013 4,821,000 693,597
214,529 30,864 232,471 33,446
215,213 30,963 139,646 20,001
34,933 5,026
5,246,678 754,840 5,228,050 752,160
4,816,936 693,013 4,821,000 693,597
3,044,303 437,984 3,020,111 434,503
1,109,580 159,635 1,082,186 155,694
181,781 26,153 346,322 49,825
36,261 5,217 37,748 5,431
5,600 806
4,371,925 628,989 4,491,967 646,259
874,753 125,851 736,083 105,900
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2024 2023 12 31
2,000,000 287,740 3,957,569 569,375 5,957,569 857,115
736,083 105,900 736,083 105,900
(225,000) (32,371) (225,000) (32,371)
2,000,000 287,740 4,468,652 642,905 6,468,652 930,645
874,753 125,851 874,753 125,851
2,000,000 287,740 5,343,405 768,756 7,343,405 1,056,496

135/209



EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E25766)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 2023 12 31

2024 2023
874,753 125,851 736,083 105,900
36,261 5,217 109,599 5,431
(215,213) (30,963) (139,646) (20,091)
695,801 100,105 634,185 91,240
(131,248) (18,883) 109,599 15,768
42,292 6,085 (48,245) (6,941)
8,804 1,267 22,681 3,263
(167,521) (24,101) 64,918 9,340
(192,580) (27,706) 74,074 10,657
255,548 36,766 857,212 123,327
(9,317) (1,340) (3,293) 474)
215,213 30,963 139,646 20,091
205,896 29,622 136,353 19,617
(225,000) (32,371)
461,444 66,388 768,565 110,573
6,786,842 976,423 6,018,277 865,850
7,248,286 1,042,811 6,786,842 976,423
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2024 2023 12 31

2024 2023 34,933
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IFRS 2024 2023 12 31

2024 2023 12 31

16 12
2024 2023 12 31
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12

12

12

2024 2023
748,286 1,186,842
6,500,000 5,600,000
7,248,286 6,786,842
2024 2023 12 31
2024 2023
316,114 192,939
125,012 116,940
441,126 309,879
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2024 2023

39,308 25,400
20,200

17,000

39,308 62,600

2024 2023

(5,600)

5,600
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2022 12 31 793,393 372,854 1,166,247
(69, 635) (69, 635)
3,293 3,293
2023 12 31 796,686 303,219 1,099,905
9,317 9,317
2024 12 31 806,003 303,219 1,109,222
2022 12 31 737,162 334,379 1,071,541
(69, 635) (69, 635)
26,861 10,887 37,748
2023 12 31 764,023 275,631 1,039,654
12,816 23,445 36,261
2024 12 31 776,839 299,076 1,075,915
2023 12 31 32,663 27,588 60,251
2024 12 31 29,164 4,143 33,307

2024 2023

10,000,000

2,000,000 2023 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
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2024 12 31
2023 225,000

Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd
Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly
Secretaries Limited Nominee
(Trust) Companies

2024 2023
Tilly Nominees Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 100
Tilly Directors Limited 100 100
Tilly Secretaries Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 2024 30
2024 12 31 975,610 2023 975,610
2024 2023
383,055 333,615
248,612 245,971
250,212 223,549
169,714 178,562
57,987 100,489
1,109,580 1,082,186
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2024 2023
5,427 15,988
14,066 15,893
19,000 106,350
25,000 25,000
181,781 346,322
2024 12 31
2023 139,082
58.97 2023 57.16
2024 2023
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2024

0.01 3.25 7,248,286 7,248,286
441,126 441,126

17,002 17,002

7,706,414 7,706,414

360,074 360,074

360,074 360,074

7,346,340 7,346,340
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2023
0.03 3.5 6,786,842 6,786,842
309,878 309,878
59,294 59,294
7,156,013 7,156,013
527,595 527,595
527,595 527,595
6,628,418 6,628,418
2024 12 31 30 2023 30
2,245 2023 3,561
30 2023 30
30 2,245 2023 3,561
2024 12 31 30 2023 30
19,500 2023 16,800
30 2023 30
30 19,500 2023 16,800
2024 2023 12 31 30
2023
2024 2023 12 31
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QUEENSGATE

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2024 and 2023
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0000000 0(E25766)
0O00000000000000000

(expressed in United Slates dollars)
2024 2023
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cagh and cash equivalents (Note 3) 7,248,286 6,786,842
Client accounts receivable (Note 4, 9) 441,126 308,878
Orther recaivables 17,002 50,204
Prepald expenses 53,453 B2 257
7,769, B8T 7.218.2MT1
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets (Mote 5) 33,307 80,261
7,793,174 7,278,622
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expanses (Note 8) 360,074 527,595
Fees received in advance 89,695 282,275
448 768 808 BTO
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Note 8) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained eamings 5,343 405 4 488 B52
7,343 405 6 4688 652
7,793,174 7,278,522

See noles o consoidated financial stalements
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QUEENSGATE

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(axprassad in United Slates dollars)
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INCOME

Directorship, trustes and management fees (Note 9)

Miscellaneous
Interest income
Rental income

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits (Note 10)
Administration (Note &, 9)
Rent expense (Note 9)
Depreciation (Note 5)
Expected credit loss (Note 4)

NET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2024 — 2033
$ 4,816,936 3 4,821,000
214,529 232,471
215,213 130,646

- 34,033

5,246,678 5,228,050
3,044,303 3,020,111
1,108,580 1,082,188
184,781 346,322
36,261 37,748

- 5,600

4,371,925 4,491 867

$ 874,753 3 736,083

See noles o consoidated financial stalements
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QUEENSGATE

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars)

Total

Retained shareholder's

Share capital earnings aquity

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 2000000 § 3957568 § 5957568
Net income and comprehensive income - 736,083 736,083
Dividends [Mota 6) - (225.000) (225,000)
Balance at December 31, 2023 2,000,000 4 468 652 6,468,652
Net income and comprehensive income - 874,753 874,753
Dividends [Mote &) - = =
Balance at December 31, 2024 $§ 2000000 § 5343405 § 7,343,405

See noles o consoidated financial stalements
Page 5
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QUEENSGATE
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(axprassad in United Slates dollars)

2024 2023
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income and comprehensive income % 874,753 5 736,083
Adjustments for non-cash items and non-operating items:
Depreciation [Mote 5) 36,261 37,748
Interest income (215,213) (138,848)
895,801 634,185
Changes In operating assets and liabilities:
Client accounts receivable (131,24E) 109,509
Other recaivables 42292 (48,245)
Prepaid expenses 8,804 22 BB
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (167,621) 64,918
Fees recaived in advance (182,580) 74,074
255,548 857,212
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assels (Note 5) (8,317) {3.203)
Interest income 215,213 138,646
205 896 136,353
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (Note B) - (225,000)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 451 444 TEB,585
CAEH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,786,842 6,018,277
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 7,248,286 5 67896842

See noles o consoidated financial stalements
Page &
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QUEENSGATE
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars)

THE COMPANY AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Cueernsgate (the "Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on
Jurse 15, 1990 as CQueensgate Bank & Trust Compary Ltd. ("QBTC") and is a wholly-owned subsidiany

of Queensgate Group Ltd. (the “Parent™), a company also incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

On January 2, 2009, QBTC underook a restructuring in order to separate the banking activities from
the trust activities. Subsequently, on January 1, 2014, the Company undertook a8 merger to re-combine
the bank and the trust activities. On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name to Gueensgate
Bank and Trust Compary Ltd. The newly named company cortinued as the entity formerly named
Ceeersgate Trust Company Lid. and was licensed with a Class B Banking license, a Trust Company
license and Mutual Fund Administration license with the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority ("CIMA™).

On Qctober 5, 2023 CIMA accepted the surrender of the Class B Banking hcense and granted approval
for the change of name to Queensgate. Duning the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
Company did not have any depasits with clients or overdrafis.

The Compary has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all

local income, prafite and capital gaine taxes urtil Februany 1, 2031, Mo such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present time.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS") and reflect the following material accounting polioy mformation;

Basiz of consolidation

The consolidated financial staternents incorporate the financial statements of the Compary and ertities
controlled by the Compary and its subsidianes. Control is achieved when the Company:

s has power aver the investee,
isexposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its imolvement with the investee, and
+ hasthe abdity to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it confrols an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to ene or more of the three elements of conirol listed above

Corsclidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary, Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or dispased of during the year are included in the consalidated statements of comprenensive
income from the date the Compary gains control until the date when the Company ceases to contral
the subsidiany.

Al sigraficart intercomparny transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation. Refer to
Maote 7 for other disclosures relating to the subsidiaries

Page T
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QUEENSGATE
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION [continued)

Use of estimates

Financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS requre management to make estimates and
assumiptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and mabilites at the date of the financial staterments and the reported amounts of INcome and expense
durning the reporting penod. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term deposites with an onginal maturity of three
manths or less

Clfent accounis receivable and allowance for doubtful accounis

Client accounts receivable includes fee income receivables generated from the Company's
directorshup, trustee and managament fees and receivables for disbursements made on behalf of
chierits. Fee income receivables are stated net of a provision for expected credit losses. Receivables
for disbursements made on behalf of clients ¢o not have a related provision for expected credit losses
as these balances typically represent unbilled disbursements that the Comparny expects to recover
once billed,

The provision for expected credit losses is established by charges to income based on the expected
credit losses in recevable balances. These are based upon management's knowledge of the current
condition of the Company’s clients

Fixed assots

Fed assels are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method and is based on the estimated lives as follows:

Furniture and computer eguipment 3to15years
Mator vehicles & years

At the end of each reporting penod, the Comparny reviews the carrying amaunt of its fived assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impaiment loss (if amy), For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company has
not identified ary assets for which an impairment loss was recorded.

Fees received in advance
The Compary collects payment from clhents as a part of the annual billing cycle for annual fees which

are subsequently remitted to various regulatory or governmental bodies. These fees are not recognised
as revenue for the Company

Page 8
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QUEENSGATE
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION [continued)

Interest income and expense

Imerest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for all interest bearing instruments on an accrual basis using the effective yield method.

Revente recognition
The Company recognises revenue from the following sources.
s directorship, trustee, management and ofher similar services provided to clients,

= migcellaneous services provided to clients and disbursement charges for services provided to
clients in connection with the directership, frustee and management senvices being provided,
and

« rental income for use of its office space,

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that the Company is contracted to receive from its
clhients and excludes amaunts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenues
on an accrual bass as performance obligations are satisfied.

The pamarny source of revenue for the Company is from the provision of directorship, trustee,
management, and registered office services to its clients. For these services, the Company recognises
revenues over the contracted penicd of service which coincides with a calendar year. Where multiple
senvices are provided to a single client, the revenues generated from each type of service are
recognised separately

Miscellaneous income includes disbursement fees charged to clients for the Company's overhead and
fees charged to dients for miscellaneous services such as copy services for meetings or courier costs,
Disbursement fee reverue is charged based ona percentage of the contracted revenue for directorship,
trustee, management and other similar services and is recognised in the same pattem as the revenues
for those services. Fees charged to clients for miscellaneous services are recognised in revenue at the
point in time inwhich they are provided.

The Compary records rental income from leasing out their office space to third parties. The rental
income is earned and recognised on a month to month basis and is not based on a contract. Mo rental
income was received during 2024 (2023. 534,933).

Operating expenses and accounts payable

Operating expenses and the associated accounts payable, with the exception of depreciation and
expected credit loss, ane recognised in the Congolidated Statements of Comprehensive IRcome on an
accrual basis.

Page 9
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QUEENSGATE
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION [continued)

Foreign currency transiation

The Company’s presantation currancy is tha United States dollar. Assets and liabilities dencminated or
accounted for in currencies other than United States dollars have been transiated into United States
dallars at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the staterment of financial poston date. Foreign curmency
transactions and income and expense items have been translated at the exchange rates existing at the
time of the transaction Gains and losses arsing from translation are included in the consclidated
statements of comprehensive income

Assets under administration

Securities, cash and ather assels held on behalf of clients in a trust, agency or fiduciany capacity are nat
included in these cormolidated firancial statements as such assets are not the property of the Comparey.

Financial instruments

Financial assats and financial labilities are recognised in the Company's statemant of financial pasition
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilties are initially measuwred at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
or subsequertly measured at fair value depending on their cash flow characteristics, Due to the short
term nature of the financial assets and labilites held by the Company, carmying value approximates fair
value

Financial assets are derecagnised when the confraciual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it tramefers the financial azzet and substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to ancther entity. Financial liabikties are derecognised when the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expire

With IFRS 9, the principle applied for the impairment of accounts receivable is based on expected credit
logsses, Mo provisian for expected credit losses was recorded for the year ended Decermber 31, 2024
and 2023

Fiduciary activities

The Company, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to litigation and claimes in the normal course of
buginess. In the opirion of the Directors, which is based on the advice from the Company's lawyers, no
provisions are required at December 31, 2024 and 2023

Leases

Under IFRS 16 Leases, a lesses recognises assels and habilities for all lease arrangements. unless the:
terr is 12 manths or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Due to the short term nature of the one
leaze contract (Mote 9) existing as at and during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the

Company has recorded the month to month lease costs as rent expense on the consolidated statements
of comprehensive INcome.

Page 10
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QUEENSGATE
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION [continued)

New and revised IFRS standards in issue but not yet effective

The Compary has reviewed the IFRS standards that have been issued but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will not have a material impact on the financial statements in future periods.

New and amended IFRS standards that are effective for the current year

The Company has reviewed the IFRS standards that are effective for the current year and has
concluded that these standards did not have an impact an the financial statements upon adaption, with
the exception of the following

s The Compary has adopted the amendments to |1AS 1 Presertation of Financial Statements in
the current year. The amendments relate to classification of liabilities as current versus non-
current on the balance sheet. The amendments require that an entity’'s right to defer settlement
of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period must have substance and must
exrst at thie end of the reporting peniod. Classfication of a liability is uraffected by the Ikeliood
that the enlity will exercise its right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the
reparting period. The impact on the financial statements is that all prior year comparative
liabilities have been classed as current,

Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainty

The Company makes estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilites.
Estimates are continually evaluasted and based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The key areas
of judgement of estimation are with regard to the expected uselul economic Iives af fived assets as well
as the recoverability of client accounts receivable from clients and due from clients. The expected useful
economic lves of fwed assets are based on prior expenence of similar assets. Client accounts receivable
and due fromclients are measured as either a 12 manth ar lifetime Expacted Credit Losses ("ECL") based
on credd nsk corsiderations.

3. CASHAMND CASH EQUIVALENTS

_ 20g4 0 2023

Call deposits $ 748,286 $ 1188842
Short-termn fixed deposits 6,500,000 5,600,000

5 7248285 3 6786842

Short-term fed deposits as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 mature within three months from the oniginal
issued date.

Page 11
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QUEENSGATE
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars) {coentinued)

4. CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts receivable inrespect of fee incorme earned by the Company or disbursements made on behalf
of clients are comprised as follows:

2084 0 0 2033

Fes income receivables $ 316,114 - 192,938
Recelvables for disbursements made on behalf of clients 125,012 118,840
Less: provislon for expected credit losses: = =

$ 441,126 3 209,878

Fee income receivables include amaunts that are past due at the end of the reporting penod for which
the Compary has not recognised a provision for expected credit losses as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable, In determining the
recoverability of the fee income receivables, the Company considers any change in the credit quality
of the recervables from the date the credit was intially granfed up to the end of the reparting period

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impaired

#1 to 180 days 5 389,308 5 25,400
181 to 360 days - 20,200
Oner 360 days - 17,000
Total — past due but not impaired $ 39,308 5 62,600

Movements in the provision for expected credit losses were as follows:

Balance at baginning of year 5 - $ -
Iipairnent osses reversed - -
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible - (5,600)
Increasa in provision - 5,600

Balance at end of year ] - 5 -

Ta reduce exposure to cred risk, the Company reviews the credit qualty of its customers and defines
credit limits as part of its onboarding process. Credit quality and limits of the receivables portfolio are
reviewed on an cngoing basis throughout the vear

Page 12
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for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
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{exprassed in United Stales dollars) {continued)
5. FIXED ASSETS
Fumiture and
compater
equipment Motor wehicles Total
Cost
Balance st December 31, 2022 5 703,303 % a72.854 % 1,166,247
Disposals - {88,835) (88,635)
Additions 3,203 - 3,203
Balance at December 31, 2023 796,608 303,219 1.099,905
Disposals - - -
Additions 89,317 = 8,317
Balance at December 31, 2024 806,003 303,219 1,108,222
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at December 31, 2022 737,182 334,379 1,071,541
Disposals - (89,635) (E8,835)
Depreciation expense 26,861 10,887 37,748
Balance st December 31, 2023 764,023 275,631 1,030,654
Disposals - - -
Depreciation expense 12,816 23,445 36,281
Balance at December 31, 2024 776,839 200,078 1,075,815
Met book value, December 31, 2023 $ 32663 § 27,588 80,251
MNet book value, December 31, 2024 5 28,184 3§ 4143 § 33,307
6. SHARE CAPITAL
— 2024 — 2023
Authorized:
10,000,000 Ordinary voling shares of $1 par value each
|ssued:
2,000,000 Ordinary voting shares (2023 2,000,000) $__ 2,000,000 5 2,000,000

158/209
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QUEENSGATE
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars) {continued)

6. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Directors may declare dividends and distnbutions on shares in issue and authorise payment of the
dividends or destributiors out of the funds of the Compary. Mo dividend ar distribution shall be pad
except ou of the realsed or uwnrealised profits of the Compary. For the year ended
December 31, 2024, a dividend of nil was declared and paid (2023: USS225 000). The rights conferred
upan the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or ofher rights shall nat, unless
otherwvise expressly provided by the termes of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied
by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith,

7. SUBSIDIARIES

The consolidated financial staterments include the accounts of the Compary and its wholly-owned
subsiciaries, Tily Nominees Limited and Coultry Directors Lid., and Tilly Nominees Limited, in turn, is
parent ta twa whally-owned subsidiaries, Tilly Directors Limited and Tilly Secretaries Limited (callectively,
the “Subsidiaries™). All of the subssdanes listed below are licensed as Nominee (Trust) Companies with

ClMa
Place of Proportion of ownarship
Principal incorporation interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary acthity __and operation heid by the Company
2024 2023
Prowide nomines
Tilly Nominees Limiied shareholder senices Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Coultry Directors Lid director senices Cayman Islands 0% 100%
Provide corporate
Tilly Directors Limited director sendces Cayman |slands 100% 100%
Frovide company
Tilly Secretaries Limited secretary senices Cayman |slands 100% 100%

The Company has not provided financial support to its Subsidiaries during the year, nor does it intend to
provide financial or other support. There are no significant restrictions on the Company’s ability to access
or use assels or seffle liabilities of the Subsidiaries. Coultry Directors Lid, was struck off on
September 30, 2024,

As of December 31, 2024, guarantees inthe total amount of 3875 610 (2023: 3575,610) have been issued
by the Compary to the Governmert of the Cayman Islands on behalf of its Subsidiarnes.
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MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassead in United Siates dollars)
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[contirued)

B. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Administration expenses are as follows

- 333,815
245,971
223,549
178,562
100,489

— 2024
Profassional feas $ 383,055
IT costs 248,612
Govemmaeant fees 250,212
Miscellaneous operating exponsoes 169,714
LRilitias 57,887

5 1,109,580

$ 1,082,186

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in the consclidated financial statermerts are the following related party balances ard

transactions:
I—
As of December 31:
Client accounts receiable $ 5,427
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 14,088
Directorship, trustee and management fees 35 19,000
Directors’ fees (included in Administration expenses) 25,000
Rent expense 181,781

2083
5 15,988
15,893

5 106,350
25,000

348 322

All transactions with related parties are conducted on nomal commercial terms and at non-preferential

interest rates

Certain employees of the Company and cenain azsets of the Company are aleo utilised by the Parent
for its ongoing operations. The employees’' services and use of the assets is curmently not recharged o

the Parent and is nat separately quantifiable

160/209
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MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars) {continued)

10. PENSION PLAN

1.

The Company has a defined contnbution pension scheme in place for all of its qualifying employees,
Caonfributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescribed masimum of 5% and
are matched by the Company. Tha Company pays tha employses’ portion, The total pansion cost
recognised during the vear ended December 31, 2024 was $110,602 (2023: $139,082) and i= included
in salaries and benefits in the consclidated statements of comprehensive income,

RISK MANAGEMENT

Afinancial instrument is a confract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial iability
of another entity. The Comparry enters into contracts involving financial instruments durning the normal
course of its business.

Risk expasures arising from financial instruments are menitored by managemert. The main risks
arising from the Company’s financial instrumants are cradit and countarparty risk, liquidity risk, market
rigk, interest rate risk and currency nsk. The exposwre to, and management of, these risks is
summarised below. The year-end figures reported in these consolidated financial statements for
financial instruments are reflective of the position held throughout the year and are consistent with the:
objectives, policies and strategies approved by management

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the nisk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the ather party by failing to discharge an cbligation. Financial instruments which patentially expose
the Cormpary to credit and counterpanty risk consist peimanly of cash and cash equivalents and client
accounts receivable.

The Compary manages its exposure to credit and counterparty nisk by placing cash and fixed deposits
with a requiated financial institution i the Cayman |slands, only takang referred business, and
manitoring outstanding recervable balances, as discussed in Mote 4.

The Compary has a cancentration risk with all cash and cash equivalents being held by one financial
ingtitution in the Cayman Islands.

Dwring the year ended December 31, 2024, approximately 58.97% (2023: 57.16%) of the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees were earned from its three (2023 three) largest customers,
No other customers contributed more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
management fees during 2024 or 2023,

Liquidity risk

Liguichity resk is tha risk that the Compamy will encourter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabiities.

Liguidity risk is monitored by the Company's management to ensure that the Company has sufficient
liquid assets to be able to meet its future expected cash outfiows, and maintains a significant proportian

of itz assets in cash in order to manage liguidity riek. Refer to interest rate risk table disclosures for
analysis of liquidity gap.

Page 16
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QUEENSGATE
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (contirued)

Market risk

Market nsk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market rigk for the Company comprises interest rate risk and
currency risk,

Interest rate risk

Irterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial irstrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Compary manages its interest rate risk by ensuring that the interest rate on assets equals or
exceeds that of the relevant olfsefting liabiity. The tables below summarise this matching as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, Items are allocated to time bands by reference to the earlier of the next
interest rate re-pricing date and the matunty date.

2024,
Effactive
Interest
Rats Less than Greater than
or % On demand 3 months 3 months Total
Monatary Assats:
Cash and cash equivalents 001325 § 7248208 5 - 8 - § 7248288
Cliant accounts recaivabla - 441,126 - - 441,126
Othar recesvables - 17,002 = - 17,002
5 TT0E414 3 - § - § T,706414
Monetary Liabilities:
Accounts payable and acorued
EXPEREES - § 380074 % - 5 - § 380,074
WOOTEe 5 -5 - 360,074
Sansitivityliquidity gap 5 TME340 5 - § - 5 7,346,340
Page 17
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(exprassed in United Statas dollars) {continued)
11. RISK MANAGEMENT {cortinued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
2023
Effactive
Il Pt
Rats Losa than Greatar than
or Range (%) On demand 3 months 3 months Total
Monetary Assebs
Cash and cash equhalents 00335 § B76842 $ - & - § B.TEEB42
Client accounts mecehabie - 306,878 - - F 0, BTE
Other mcahabins - 59,204 = = 58,284
5 788014 5 - 5 - § 7158014
Monetary Liablilfes:
Depasitors’ accounts o - % - % - % -
Accouns payable and accnssd
axpanses -§ srses o - §  so7.508
§ 57595 - % - 3 527585
Sensitivity/liquidity gap 3 agmath 2 -3 - § BE28A1D

The Compary s exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in prevailing levels of Ted
and floating interest rates on its cash flows

At Decamber 31, 2024, with respect to the floating rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
(2023 30) basis points higher with all other varables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
been 52 245 higher (2023: 53 561 higher). If market inerest rates had been 30 (2023: 30} basis paints
lower with all other varables held constant, shareholder's equity would have decreased by less than
52,245 (2023 would have decreased by less than $3 561) duwe to the fact that certain account balances
earm interest at a rate lower than 30 basis paints

At December 31, 2024, with respect to the ficed rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
(2023 30) basis points higher with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would hawve
been 519,500 higher (2023 316,800 higher). IF markel interest rates had been 30 (2023 30) basis
paints lower with all ather variables hald corstant, shareholder's equity would have decreasad by less
than 18 500 (2023 would have decreased by leas than 516 200) due o the fact that cerntain acoount
balances earned interest at a rate lower than 30 basis points

Page 18
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QUEENSGATE
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Siates dollars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (contirued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

This analysis is based on interest bearing instruments held at year-end, and assumes the change in
interest rates took place at the beginning of the yvear and the interest bearing instruments were held
constant throughout the reporting peniod, Thirty basis poirts s the sersitivity rate used when reporting
imterest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the possible change in market rates for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates

The Company operates in the Cayman Iskands, and mainly holds instruments with net exposures to the
Cayman Islands dollar {2023: Cayman Islands dallar). The Cayman Islands dollar has a fived exchange
rate against the United States dollar,

For the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, no foreign currency assets or liabilities were held
other than the Cayman Islands dollar, which is pegged to the United States dollar

12. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Compary manages its capital to ensure that the Comparny will be able to continue as a gaing
concern while mdximising the returm 1o the sharehalder thiough the oplimisation of the debt and egquity

balance. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2023
The capital structure of the Gomparny consists of issued Ordinary voting shares and retained earmings,

13. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to regulatory capital requirements established by CIMA. Failure to meet
minimurm capital requirements can initiate certain actions by the reguiator that, if undertaken, could
have a direct material effect on the Company's consclidated financial statements. Under capital
adequacy gudelines used by CIMA and prescribed under The Banks and Trus!t Comparies Act of the
Cayman |slands, the Company must maet specific capital guidalines that irmvolve quantitative measures
of the Company's assets, iabiliies, and certain off-balance sheet items as caloulated under regulatory
accounting practices. The Company's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
judgments by CIMA about companents and risk weightings

Prior to the surrender of the Class B Banking License, the Company was required to maintain a capital
adequacy ratio of at least 15%. The Company was in compliance with this requiremeant for the period
from January 1, 2023 to October 5, 2023 (license surrender date)

Under the terms of its licenses, the Company is required to maintain @ minimum net worth of

Ky D400,000 (US5500,000). The Company is in compliance with this reguirement as at and for the
vears endad December 31, 2024 and 2023,
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QUEENSGATE
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(exprassad in United Slates dollars) {continued)

14. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain prior vear figures have been reclassified to conform Lo the current year's presentation,
15. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by a committee of the Board of Directors and
authorized for issue on March G, 2025,
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Independent auditor’s report

To CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
not in its individual capacity but solely as Trustee of Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection,
a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Global High
Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection (the Class Fund), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust as at January 31,
2025, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards.

What we have audited
The Class Fund's financial statements comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at January 31, 2025;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders for the year then ended;
e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the supplementary schedule
of investments (unaudited), (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Class Fund or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Class Fund's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Class Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Class Fund in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Cayman Islands

June 13, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Queensgate

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate and its subsidiaries (the
""Company'), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in shareholders”
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024, and its
consolidated financial performance, and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(1ASB).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Interenational Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (1ESBA Code), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the 1ASB, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company®s financial reporting process.

Auditor”s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company”®s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
March 6, 2025
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